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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group” or “Ming Hing") for the year ended 31 March 2008.
Ming Hing is committed to providing quality water-related services
to the people in Hong Kong as well as the PRC. During the year
under review, the Group started to exercise a two-pronged strategy
aimed at consolidating its standing in the Hong Kong market and
penetrating into Mainland China’s water services industry.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of HK$648.5
million, representing an increase of 24.7% over last year (2007:
HK$519.9 million). After the recognition of share option related
expenses of HK$5.3 million, profit for the year amounted to HK$24.9
million. Basic earnings per share of the Company (the “Share(s)”)
amounted to HK2.845 cents. The Board proposed to pay a final
dividend of HK0.80 cent per Share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Ming Hing has established a formidable reputation for excellence in
Hong Kong water service market. Being a major water service
provider in the Territory, Ming Hing derives over 94% of its revenue
from projects of water-related services with the Water Supplies
Department (“WSD") of the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) being the ultimate customer. Taking the next logical
step, the Group has begun to penetrate the lucrative PRC market,
with the year under review representing a milestone year. After
placing concerted efforts into tackling the China arena, the PRC
operations began to contribute to the Group’s total revenue in the
review year. As Ming Hing targets to further expand its operations
through acquisitions in the PRC, greater relevant revenue intake
from the PRC business is expected in the future.

To highlight the Group’s commitment in the water-related business,
the Company’s name has been changed from “Ming Hing Holdings
Limited BB ELZ 2 R A A" to “Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings
Limited B3 £ 7K 7 5 Hxﬁﬁﬁ” A" pursuant to a special resolution
passed on 11 June 2007.

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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PRC Market

The shortage and pollution of water resources have become a
growing threat to the health of the PRC population. At present,
over 400 cities (including Beijing and Tianjin) of the 669 PRC cities
encounter the problem of water shortage, while 300 million people
drink water with quality below the national standard, not to mention
the absence of comprehensive sewage systems. In 2004, the State
Council of the PRC declared in “Circular of the General Office of
the State Council on Pushing Forward the Reform of Water Price
and Promoting Economy of Water Use and Protection of Water
Resources” a series of measures to improve the allocation of water
resources, adjust water demand, promote the prevention and control
of water pollution, encourage water conservation, and increase
efficiency of utilization through the price leverage mechanism.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, the
domestic water price among 36 large and medium-sized cities has
risen 18% from 2004 to 2007. For water conservation purpose, the
PRC government has announced its dedication to accelerate water
price reform and upward price adjustment is expected to begin.
These measures, together with the opening of the PRC water market
to foreign water engineering service providers, will create sound
business opportunities for Ming Hing.

In January 2008, the Trade and Industry Department of the
Government issued to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ming Hing the
Certificate of Hong Kong Service Supplier (the “Certificate”) as
stipulated in the Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement and its Supplements. With the Certificate,
the Group will be able to bid water supply and drainage projects
and apply its advanced technology, profound experience and
expertise in the PRC market.
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During the year under review, the Group has made several key steps
toward establishing its position in China’s waterworks sector. In
September 2007, the Group acquired the assets of the Hunan
Province Ningxiang County Water Supply Company (“Ningxiang
Water”) for a consideration of RMB90.08 million. Ningxiang Water
is an exclusive water supply service provider for Ningxiang County,
one of the major economic development areas in Changsha City,
the capital of Hunan Province. Its existing daily water supply capacity
is 95,000 tons, providing water service for a population of over
200,000, which is expected to grow steadily in the foreseeable future.
To enhance cost efficiency and overall operational effectiveness, the
management has been closely examining the Ningxiang water plant
on its operational and management level. Restructuring activities
focusing on organizational structure, management style and
engineering efficiency have been commenced. Consequently, relevant
operating results started to turn around into profit in the review
year. Such efforts are most timely as water demand is expected to
rise with the launch of a large-scale residential property as well as
continual industrial development in Ningxiang.

To further expand its footprint in the PRC market, the Group signed
the memorandum of understanding with an independent third party
to form a joint venture company which will principally be engaged
in the water supply business in Leizhou City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC. In May 2008, Ming Hing has announced its acquisition of
interests in a water treatment plant to provide associated services in
Qingyuan City of Guangdong Province, which is a fast developing
area adjacent to Guangzhou.

In March 2008, an announcement regarding the establishment of
joint venture with China Water Affairs Group Limited (“China
Water”) was made. To leverage the support of China Water, the
Group aims to further explore more investment opportunities in the
PRC.

Since the Group was still going through the investment stage of its

PRC business during the year under review, contributions from PRC
operations are expected to blossom in the coming years.

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Hong Kong Market

With its profound experience in the waterworks engineering industry
in Hong Kong, Ming Hing has been able to sustain its leading position
in the market and achieve steady growth for the Group’s Hong
Kong operations over the years.

As efforts in China intensified, the Group's operations in Hong Kong
continued to represent a stable income source for fuelling further
growth. During the year under review, revenue generated from
maintenance contracts amounted to HK$588.2 million (2007:
HK$438.4 million), contributing approximately 90.7% (2007: 84.3%)
of the Group’s total revenue. The increase in maintenance contracts
revenue was mainly attributable to the full year revenue contribution
from the maintenance contract in the New Territories East district
(contract number: 1/WSD/06(E)) which commenced since September
2006.
million (2007: HK$80.2 million). However, stemming from rising

For the year under review, gross profit increase to HK$83.8

operating costs, especially for raw materials as well as subcontracting
and staff cost, gross profit margins decline to 12.9% (2007: 15.4%).

To alleviate such high cost pressure in the Territory, Ming Hing has
been implementing stringent cost control through direct sourcing of
raw materials, centralization of procurement functions and reforming
contract operations in order to enhance the effectiveness of staff
and overhead costs.

While existing contracts have been undergoing in good performance
and progress, four new contracts have been awarded to the Group
from the Government during the reporting year. Specifically, the
four contracts are: water mains replacement and rehabilitation project
in Tai Po and Fanling (contract number: 21/WSD/06); construction
of the To Shek Salt Water Service Reservoir and Ma On Shan No. 3
Salt Water Service Reservoir (contract number: 11/WSD/07); and two
landslip prevention projects in Tuen Mun, Eastern New Territories
and Outlying Islands (contract number: GE/2006/19 and GE/2006/
35). The total contract sum of these new contracts amounted to
HK$359.8 million.
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Awards and Recognition

With over 40 years of experience in the water engineering service
industry, Ming Hing is widely recognized for its expertise and
professionalism. Ming Hing was recognized as the Best Landslip
Preventive Measures Contractor of 2007 by the Geotechnical
Engineering Office, Civil Engineering & Development Department of
the Government. The Group was also presented the Occupational
Health Award 2007/2008 in the Hearing Conservation Category
(Merit Award) of its Term Contract for Waterworks in District K —
Kowloon by the Occupational Safety & Health Council and the Labour
Department of the Government. Besides, the Group won three
Meritorious Prizes under the Construction Industry Safety Award
Scheme 2007/2008, in the Safety Teams Category as well as the
Civil Engineering Sites Category.

PROSPECTS
Exploring investment opportunities in China

According to the PRC government’s National Eleventh Five-Year Plan,
a significant amount of financial resources will be directed towards
environmental protection and water conservation. With the
liberalization of the country’s water market and promotion of water
price reforms, enormous opportunities will therefore be available to
quality water service providers. To capitalize on the opportunities
presented, the Group will aim to bolster its presence in the country,
in particular, directing investments towards Guangdong Province,
Guangxi Province as well as other areas of Hunan Province.

Ming Hing will continue its investment to further extend its footprint
in the PRC market, such as to enhance its water and sewage
treatment capabilities by acquiring relevant plants in the country.
Furthermore, the Group will also continue to explore materials
sourcing opportunities in the Mainland so as to enhance existing
procurement procedures with an aim of achieving margin
improvement.

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Benefiting from favourable government policies in
Hong Kong

The Government's commitment to enhancing the infrastructure
network of Hong Kong was reaffirmed during the 2007/08 Policy
Address. Confirming 10 large-scale projects with a combined contract
value of approximately HK$250 billion, such developments will
inherently benefit the water service engineering sector, both
immediately and in the long-term. The Government’s Water Mains
Replacement and Rehabilitation Program are also favourable towards
further consolidation of the Group’s leading role in the Hong Kong
market. Being a major water services provider in Hong Kong, the
Group stands to significantly benefit from these upcoming projects.
While striving to enhance our revenue stream, Ming Hing is
considering several ways for maintaining margin levels in this
challenging operating environment. Among the steps Ming Hing
will take include streamlining operational procedures and reinforcing
controls over operating costs. Ming Hing will ride on its industry
expertise and experience to secure more projects with promising
returns.

The management is confident that the Hong Kong operations will
continue to provide steady support to the current business
development program underway in Mainland China, which will
become a major growth driver that delivers long-term benefits for
the Group. The Group will continue to look for investment
opportunities with sound potential to sustain its development in the
long run.

CAPITAL RAISING AND EXPENDITURE

In view of the rapid expansion in the PRC market, the Group carried
out two equity fund raising activities during the review year, whereby
a total of 256,000,000 new Shares (adjusted for the effect of the
shares subdivision which became effective on 12 June 2007) were
issued with total gross proceeds of HK$247.0 million raised, of which
HK$165.0 million to be spent on potential acquisition of water
projects in the PRC. These capital resources provided a substantial
support for the Group’s expansion and development in the PRC
waterworks market.
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For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group’s total capital
expenditure was HK$83.8 million (2007: HK$16.6 million), of which
HK$10.0 million was spent on the acquisition of property, plant and
equipments while HK$33.2 million was paid as a partial consideration
on the acquisition of Ningxiang Water.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2008, cash and cash equivalents increased to
HK$172.9 million (2007: HK$11.5 million). The Group’s total
borrowings amounted to HK$249.3 million (2007: HK$130.1 million),
which were secured by pledged deposits of HK$28.9 million. The
gearing ratio, calculated as a percentage of net debt to equity, is
10.8% (2007: 58.7%) as at 31 March 2008. The current ratio is 2.2
times (2007: 1.9 times).

With the cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2008 and available
banking facilities, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet with its funding requirement.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2008, the Group employed approximately 670
employees (2007: 400 employees), included 190 employees in the
operations in the PRC, and over half of them are direct labor. Total
staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, for the year under review
amounted to HK$90.3 million (2007: HK$61.9 million). The
employees were remunerated according to the nature of the job
and market trend with discretionary bonus, which is distributable
based on the Group’s operating results and individual performance.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude to my fellow Board members, the management
and staff for their diligence and dedication over the past year. | also
wish to express my sincere thanks to our business partners, customers
and shareholders for their continuing support to the Group.

YUEN Chow Ming
Chairman
18 July 2008

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YUEN Chow Ming, aged 71, is an executive Director, the
Chairman and the founder of the Company and the Group. Mr.
YUEN and three other partners found Ming Hing Engineering
Company (the “Partnership”) in 1967. In January 1987, Mr. YUEN,
together with Mr. SO Yiu Cheung and two other partners, established
Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering Company Limited and he was
one of the founding directors. Mr. YUEN studied engineering science
at "EREEHBEHEKE" in the early 1960s and has over 37 years'
experience in waterworks engineering, most time of which were
devoted to developing and managing the Group’s waterworks
projects. Mr. YUEN was appointed as an executive Director on 29
October 2004. Mr. YUEN has been since the inception of the business
responsible for the marketing, formulation of corporate strategies,
business planning and overall management of the Group. Mr. YUEN
is the father of Mr. YUEN Wai Keung.

Mr. SO Yiu Cheung, aged 56, is an executive Director and the
Deputy Chairman and is responsible for the overall project
management of the Group. Mr. SO is also involved in the formulation
of corporate plans and strategies of the Group. Mr. SO obtained his
certificate in structural engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic in
July 1973. Mr. SO is also an associate member of the Institute of
Plumbing in the UK. Mr. SO has over 32 years’ experience in
waterworks engineering. Mr. SO joined the Group in 1985 as a
partner to the Partnership and became one of the founding partners
of Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering Company Limited in 1987.
Mr. SO was appointed as an executive Director on 29 October 2004.

Mr. YUEN Wai Keung, aged 41, is an executive Director, the Deputy
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and is
responsible for the overall business management and corporate
development of the Group. Mr. YUEN graduated from the Imperial
College of Science, Technology and Medicine, University of London
with a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering in 1990. Mr.
YUEN also holds a master’s degree in Business Administration from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2000. Mr.
YUEN is a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a
member of Institution of Mechanical Engineers (UK). Mr. YUEN joined
the Group in 1991 and since then has been heavily involved in all
aspects relating to the waterworks business of the Group, especially
for the development of market in Mainland China. He is a member
of The 10" Committee of Changsha City Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Mr. YUEN became a director of Ming Hing
Waterworks Engineering Company Limited in 1996. Mr. YUEN is the
son of Mr. YUEN Chow Ming. Mr. YUEN was appointed as an
executive Director on 2 June 2004.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHUNG Lai Kwok, Elaine, 88s, MBA, MBS, aged 62, is the
Consultant of Henderson Land Development Company Limited
("Henderson Land”), the shares of which are listed (stock code:
012) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Ms. CHUNG has degrees in Master of Business
Administration and Master of Buddhist Studies from the University
of Hong Kong and studied at Harvard Business School and Tsinghua
University. Prior to joining Henderson Land, Ms. CHUNG had an
illustrious career with the Hong Kong Government. Ms. CHUNG
took up a number of senior posts in the housing, culture, sports
and environmental hygiene fields. Ms. CHUNG also did volunteer
work for community organisations. She served as the Co-Chairman
of the Community Chest’'s Environmental Committee. She is now a
member of the Governing Board of the Buddhist Hospital and a
director of the Buddhist Mau Fung Memorial College. Ms. CHUNG is
also the author of a book on Putonghua. Ms. CHUNG was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star in October 2004 by the Government of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. SUN Bo Quan, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director and was appointed on 1 October 2006. Mr. SUN is a
postgraduate and he was formerly the Vice Bureau Head and Deputy
Chief Economist of Tianjin Public Utility Bureau. Mr. SUN is the
Chairman of Tianjin Gas Group Company Limited (a substantial
shareholder of Tianjin Tianlian Public Utilities Company Limited
(“Tianjin Tianlian")) and the Chairman of Tianjin Tianlian, which is
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange.

Professor LEUNG Yee Tak, aged 59, is an independent non-
executive Director and was appointed on 11 November 2005.
Professor LEUNG holds a master’'s degree of Science, a doctorate
degree of Science and a doctorate degree of Philosophy from the
University of Aston in Birmingham in the UK. Professor LEUNG is a
fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society, a fellow of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyor, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and he is currently the Chair Professor of
the Department of Building and Construction of the City University
of Hong Kong.

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis, aged 40, is an independent non-
executive Director and was appointed on 11 November 2005. Mr.
CHEUNG holds a master’s degree in Commerce from the University
of New South Wales, Australia. Mr. CHEUNG has over eleven years
of experience in accounting and financial management and is
currently the Chief Financial Officer of the China division of Midland
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. CHEUNG is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Australian Society of Certified
Practicing Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TANG Man Shing, aged 45, is the General Manager of China
Development of the Group. Mr. TANG has over 20 years of experience
in China trade, project investment and joint venture management.
He has stationed in China for seven years for multinational
corporations of Europe and Asia origin for large infrastructure and
industrial projects development, construction and international
tendering. He has 10 years of experience in development and
management of China water infrastructure projects and most of the
time represented The China Water Company Limited, which was
one of the investments of Thames Water Plc. Mr. TANG holds a
bachelor’'s degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Hong
Kong, a master’'s degree of Systems Engineering from the Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology University and a master’s degree
of Environmental Engineering from the University of New South
Wales. Mr. TANG joined the Group in June 2007.

Mr. SO Sai Kwan, aged 57, is the Senior Project Manager of the
Group and is mainly responsible for the sourcing and management
of the waterworks projects in the Mainland China. Mr. SO holds a
master degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of
Manchester in UK and is member of the Institution of Mechanical
Engineers (UK) and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Mr. SO
was a former senior electrical and mechanical engineer in the WSD.
He was responsible for the administration of the operational activities
in the New Territories East Region. Mr. SO is well experienced in the
waterworks activities including the design, operation and
maintenance of waterworks installations, such as water treatment
plant and pumping station. He retired from WSD in 2006 and joined
the Group in April 2007.
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Mr. MA Ving Hoo, aged 40, is the Deputy General Manager (Hong
Kong Engineering) of the Group and is responsible for the
management of the Group’s projects. Mr. MA has about 18 years’
experience in the field of civil engineering. Mr. MA obtained a higher
diploma in Building from the City University of Hong Kong in 1990
and a master’s degree of Business Administration from the University
of Hull, the United Kingdom in 1999 and a bachelor’'s degree of
Science in Construction Engineering and Management from the
Queen’s University of Brighton, the United States in 2005. Mr. MA
is also the Chartered Member of Chartered Institute of Building
(MCIOB) and American Institute of Constructors (MAIC). Mr. MA
joined the Group in June 2005.

Ms. FONG Man Yan, aged 33, is the Commercial and Quantity
Surveying Manager of the Group and is responsible for the
management of cost planning and quantity surveying works of the
Group. Ms. FONG holds a bachelor’'s degree of Engineering in
Integrated Engineering with Industrial Management from the
University of Liverpool in the UK and a master’'s degree of
Construction Project Management from the University of Hong Kong.
Ms. FONG has about ten years of quantity surveying experience in
the construction field. Ms. FONG joined the Group in October 2002.

Dr. WONG Chun Hung, aged 38, is the Contract Manager of the
Group and is responsible for the project management of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in December 1999, Dr. WONG taught in
the Department of Physics and Materials Science of the City University
of Hong Kong as a temporary lecturer during his post-doctoral
research in fluid dynamics and acoustics. Dr. WONG obtained his
bachelor’s degree in Engineering and doctorate degree of Philosophy
in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in 1993 and 1998,
respectively.

Mr. TAM Kin Kei, aged 40, is the Procurement Manager and is
responsible for the procurement and sourcing of the Group. Mr.
Tam has more than 15 years’ experience in the field of building
services engineering. Mr. Tam holds a bachelor’s degree of Chemical
Engineering in University of Manchester Institute of Science and
Technology and a master’s degree in Business Administration from
University of Leicester. He obtained diploma in Practical Purchasing
Management from the Hong Kong Management Association. Mr.
Tam joined the Group in November 2007.

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Ms. YEUNG Yuen Sheung, aged 33, is the Financial Controller of
the Group and is the Company Secretary of the Company. Ms.
YEUNG has about ten years of experience in the auditing and
accounting field. Ms. YEUNG holds a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Accounting and Finance) from the University of Hong
Kong. Ms. YEUNG is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the UK and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. YEUNG joined the
Group in June 2004.

Mr. WONG Wai Chun, Alex, aged 30, is the Accounting Manager
(PRC) of the Group and is responsible for the management of the
accounting works in the Mainland China. Mr. WONG has about six
years of experience in the auditing and accounting field. Mr. WONG
holds a bachelor’'s degree of Accounting and Finance from the
University of Glamorgon in UK. Mr. WONG is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG
joined the Group in November 2007.
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Corporate Governance Report

THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
investment public and other shareholders. Therefore, the Directors
are dedicated to maintain high standard corporate governance
practices. The Board reviews its corporate governance practices from
time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders
and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March
2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of three executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. All three executive Directors
are responsible for dealing with the Group’s business in accordance
with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not limited
to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Group.

The role of the Board includes overseeing the strategic development,
business planning, risk management, annual and interim results,
and other significant operational and financial matters of the Group.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include the preparation of annual and interim
financial statements to be approved by the Board before public
reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted
by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and ensuring of
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board meets
regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and care.

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in the
full Board meetings and other committee meetings for the year
ended 31 March 2008 are as follows:

ERLEREBTREY
No. of meetings attended/held
ENREEE REZEE ¥FMZzEE
= =f- g3 =f
2HER Audit Nomination Remuneration
Full Board Committee = Committee = Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
HITES Executive Directors
R EE (FE) Mr. YUEN Chow Ming (Chairman) 8/9 - - -
BB A Mr. SO Yiu Cheung 9/9 - - -
[R1Z® & Mr. YUEN Wai Keung 9/9 - 212 6/6
BAFHITES Independent non-executive Directors
BEEZT (R_FZELF Ms. CHUNG Lai Kwok, Elaine
+—A+RAEZMT) (appointed on 15 November 2007) 112 71 - -
BERazts Mr. SUN Bo Quan 0/9 - - -
RRHE Professor LEUNG Yee Tak 6/9 12 12 4/6
REXLE Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis 9/9 212 212 6/6
ERE L (R_ZZEF Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond
+—A—H#T) (resigned on 1 November 2007) 2/6 11 - -
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The number of independent non-executive Directors has met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man,
Dennis has appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The
Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Ms. CHUNG Lai Kwok, Elaine has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 15
November 2007. Mr. SUN Bo Quan has been re-appointed as an
independent non-executive Director for a period of one year which
commenced from 1 October 2007, while the other two independent
non-executive Directors have been re-appointed for a period of one
year which commenced from 1 November 2007. All the appointments
of independent non-executive Directors may be terminated by either
party by giving one month’s written notice and subject to retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”). The Directors are of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 March 2008, regular Board meetings
were held at approximately quarterly intervals and other Board
meetings were held when necessary. Minutes of the Board meetings
are being kept by the company secretary of the Company and are
available for inspection by the Directors and auditors of the Company.

THE ROLES OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by two different persons and each of them plays a distinctive
role to ensure their respective independence and accountability. The
Chairman, Mr. YUEN Chow Ming, is responsible for the leadership
and formulation of corporate strategies of the Group. The Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. YUEN Wai Keung, is responsible for the overall
business management and corporate development of the Group.
Mr. YUEN Chow Ming is the father of Mr. YUEN Wai Keung. Further
details on the Directors are set out on pages 12 to 16 under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. The obligations to comply with the Listing
Rules are set out in the terms of the service contract of each executive
Director and the letter of appointment of each independent non-
executive Director. The Company has made specific enquiries with
the Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the requirements set out under the Model Code for
the year ended 31 March 2008.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis, Ms. CHUNG Lai
Kwok, Elaine and Professor LEUNG Yee Tak. Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man,
Dennis, who possesses a professional accounting qualification and
relevant accounting experience, is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Under its terms of reference, the main role and functions of the
Audit Committee are to review the Group's financial information, to
supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control systems,
and to maintain relations with the auditors of the Company. The
Group’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2008 have been
reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee before submission
to the Board for approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr.
YUEN Wai Keung (Chairman), and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Professor LEUNG Yee Tak and Mr. CHEUNG Chi
Man, Dennis.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is to assist and
make recommendations to the Board to ensure that all the
nominations are fair and transparent. The work of the Nomination
Committee includes reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change and
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director, Mr.
YUEN Wai Keung (Chairman), and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Professor LEUNG Yee Tak and Mr. CHEUNG Chi
Man, Dennis.

The key responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to review
and make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for remuneration of the Directors and the senior management and
determining the remuneration package of the Directors and the
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of remuneration of all the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has considered and
reviewed the Group's remuneration policy in relation to that of
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and the senior management and desirability of performance-
based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considered that
the existing terms of remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management were fair and reasonable.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the management of the Group maintain a sound and
effective system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with
the applicable laws and regulations.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate assertions on
the adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting and the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. Through the
Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness of these
systems.

During the year, the Company has engaged an external professional
adviser to review the effectiveness of its system of internal control.
Relevant applicable recommendations made by such adviser would
be implemented by the Group in stages to further enhance its internal
control policies, procedures and practices.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Company endeavors to maintain a long-term relationship with
its shareholders and investors with an adherence to the principles of
integrity, regularity and high transparency and disclose the required
information in compliance with the Listing Rules. To ensure effective
and clear communications with the investors, analysts and fund
manager, meetings are arranged and conducted by the executive
Directors and designated senior executives according to established
practices of the Company. The Company has announced its annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2008 in a timely manner, which
is in accordance with the requirement set out in the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group, and of results and cash flow for the period. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2008, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the
accounts on the going concern basis. The Directors also warrant
that the Group’s financial statements will be published in a timely
manner.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the section headed
to 40 of this report.

“Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 39

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The auditors of the Company, Grant Thornton, have been employed
to provide audit services to the Group for the year ended 31 March
2008. The remuneration paid or payable to Grant Thornton in respect
of audit services and non-audit services (including taxation compliance
fee, review of interim results and other reporting services) for the
year ended 31 March 2008 amounted to HK$680,000 and
HK$308,000 respectively.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of each member of the Group are set forth in
note 16 to the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of maintenance
and construction works on civil engineering contracts in respect of
waterworks engineering, road works and drainage and slope
upgrading for the public sector in Hong Kong. During the year, the
Group has started to engage in provision of water supply services in
the PRC.

CHANGE OF THE COMPANY'S NAME

Pursuant to the special resolution of the Company passed on 11
June 2007, the name of the Company has been changed from “Ming
Hing Holdings Limited BREER GR QA F" to
Waterworks Holdings Limited BF 817K 7% 3% i% & BR A 7]

”l\/Iing Hing

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 39 to 123.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.80
cent per Share for the year ended 31 March 2008. Subject to the
approval of the Directors’ recommendation by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting to be held on Tuesday,
26 August 2008 (the “AGM"), the final dividend will be paid on or
about Friday, 5 September 2008 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company as at the close of
business on Tuesday, 26 August 2008. The total amount of such
dividend is HK$7.4 million.

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 124.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year ended 31 March 2008, together with the
reasons thereof, are set out in notes 26 and 27 respectively to the
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 28 to the financial
statements respectively.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Company’s initial public offering
amounted to approximately HK$43.0 million, which included
additional net proceeds of HK$6.0 million as a result of the offer
price per Share determined as HK$0.72. The remaining balance of
the net proceeds as at 31 March 2008 amounted to HK$7.5 million.
The net proceeds applied during the year is consistent with the
proposed use of the net proceeds set forth in the Company’s
prospectus dated 3 March 2006 (the “Prospectus”). The unused
balance of the net proceeds was kept in the Group's interest-bearing
bank accounts in Hong Kong. Details of the proposed use of the net
proceeds of HK$37.0 million set forth in the Prospectus and the

NFZRA=Z+—HIEFEZEBRAERFIBA  actual application thereof during the year ended 31 March 2008 are
AN as follows:
REE
—2ENF
RZZBB+tH% ZA=+t-H RIZBBN\F
RERAE mMA—-RA LEEWMHAE =ZA=+-H
BERR ferE NERR 023
Use of proceeds
Remaining during the Remaining
Proposed use  balance as at year ended  balance as at
of proceeds 1 April 2007 31 March 2008 31 March 2008
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
HK$'M HK§'M HK$'M HK$'M
FATIREE Acquisition of machinery and
W KRR equipment for the following projects:
- KEFARK - Water mains replacement and
EEIRE rehabilitation projects 16.0 6.7 2.1 46
— BB REUR - Roads and drainage and slope
Ry mETE upgrading projects 6.5 338 0.9 2.9
AEREEMRARMER N Hiring staff for current and new projects
REBRRERETL and the expansion of the Group 4.0 - - -
FAREE Exploring and developing
B K waterworks business
TRml opportunities in the PRC 25 23 23 -
BERITER Repayment of bank loan 5.0 - - -
AEE-REEES General working capital of the Group 3.0 = = =
37.0 12.8 5.3 1.5
—ZT N\FFH® ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISITNG (continued)

The additional net proceeds of HK$6.0 million has been fully utilized
for the general working capital of the Group during the year ended
31 March 2007.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, the Company has repurchased Shares

N on the Stock Exchange as follows:
== BI&
BE SREEE SRBEEE
g =] Highest Lowest
Number purchase purchase
=] of Shares price price FHBE
Date repurchased per Share per Share Total paid
T BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
—EEEFNANAB 8 August 2007 680,000 1.050 1.000 704,460
(BT 3%) (Note)
ZEENF=A+=H 13 March 2008 380,000 0.415 0.395 154,130
ZEENF=RA+MA 14 March 2008 380,000 0.405 0.390 152,120
ZEENF=A+NA 18 March 2008 100,000 0.340 0.320 33,480
ZEENF=ATNAB 19 March 2008 100,000 0.365 0.350 35,900
ZEENF=RA=+H 20 March 2008 100,000 0.380 0.365 36,950
—EENF=A=-+THH 25 March 2008 20,000 0.380 0.380 7,600
—EENF=A=+AH 26 March 2008 20,000 0.385 0.385 7,700
—EENF=RA=++H 27 March 2008 1,000,000 0.395 0.380 390,250
2,780,000 1,522,590

RABBEZFEBRRG - AAE 2B %7
A& A EEAIR - BERG N ZS5EBRE
& A A1,400,0008 ¢ © E R &EERD
l;//% o
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The repurchased Shares were subsequently cancelled by the
Company. The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the par values thereof. The premium paid on the repurchase of
Shares and related expenses, in the amount of HK$1.4 million, was
charged to the share premium account.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The repurchase of Shares during the year (except the repurchase of
680,000 Shares on 8 August 2007 (Note)) was effected by the
Directors pursuant to the general mandate approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23 August 2007, with a view to benefiting shareholders as a
whole by enhancing the net asset value per Share and earnings per
Share of the Group.

Note: The repurchase of 680,000 Shares on 8 August 2007 was effected
by the Directors pursuant to the general mandate approved by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 18 August 2006.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Shares
during the year ended 31 March 2008.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. YUEN Chow Ming (Chairman)
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. CHUNG Lai Kwok, Elaine (Appointed on
15 November 2007)
Mr. SUN Bo Quan
Professor LEUNG Yee Tak
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis
Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond (Resigned on 1 November 2007)

In accordance with article 86(3) of the Articles, Ms. CHUNG Lai

Kwok, Elaine, shall hold office until the AGM and, being eligible,
shall offer herself for re-election.

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, Mr. YUEN Chow Ming
and Mr. SO Yiu Cheung will retire by rotation at the AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. All the other
Directors will continue in office.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Director, a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 16.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on
1 March 2006 (the “"Commencement Date”), which will continue
thereafter provided that either the Company or the executive Director
may, after one year of the Commencement Date, terminate the
appointment of the executive Director by giving to the other party
not less than six months’ written notice of termination or by payment
in lieu of such notice.

Ms. CHUNG Lai Kwok, Elaine, an independent non-executive Director,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company on 12
November 2007 for a fixed term commencing on 15 November 2007
and ending on 31 October 2008 and may be terminated by either
party by giving one month’s written notice. Mr. SUN Bo Quan, an
independent non-executive Director, has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing
on 1 October 2007 and may be terminated by either party by giving
one month’s written notice. For the rest of the independent non-
executive Directors, each of them has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing
on 1 November 2007 and may be terminated by either party by
giving one month’s written notice.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract of
service with the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).

The Company’s policies concerning emoluments of the Directors are
as follows:

(i)  the amount of remuneration is determined on the basis of the
relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group;

(i) non-cash benefits may be provided to the Directors under their
remuneration package; and

(iii) the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board,
share options pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by
the Company, as part of their remuneration package.

DIRECTORS’ AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of continuing connected transactions which also constitute
related party transactions for the year are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements. In the opinion of the independent non-executive
Directors, such transactions which are exempted from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules were entered into by the Group:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to/from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

() in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

On 16 November 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
namely Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering Company Limited (as
lessor), and Grand Media Limited (as leasee), a company which is
owned by Mr. Yuen Chow Ming, Mr. So Yiu Cheung and Mr. Yuen
Wai Keung as to 33.33%, 33.33% and 33.33%, respectively, entered
into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) regarding the
premises of Units 1809-1812, 18th Floor, Telford House, No. 16
Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Lease Agreement was
renewed on 5 March 2008 with identical terms and conditions except
for a lease term of three years from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2011
at a monthly rental of HK$82,000.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, no Director
had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2008, the Directors had the following interests in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated

corporations which were recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and

Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),

or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

(a) Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each of the Company

RARQF
RESNED L

B Mg Approximate
Capacity/ BERGOEA percentage of
EERE B 5 Nature of Number of shareholding in
Name of Director Notes interest Shares held the Company
JRRK B 5 £ 1 HEGEE R 453,888,000 48.76%
Mr. YUEN Chow Ming Interest of controlled
corporation
ERIRTE SR AL 2 EEGDEE 453,888,000 48.76%
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung Interest of controlled
corporation
(EPN: ¥ 2,000,000 0.21%
Personal
REL: S 3 REGDEE 2 453,888,000 48.76%
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung Interest of controlled
corporation
(EPN: ¥ 5,704,000 0.61%
Personal
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Development Limited ([Robinhoods])
7 % EEERE - KPR Able Promise
Holdings Limited ([ Able Promise|) &
BERARNBIRERE EFTFESIERITTE
=52 —1EHE o Able Promise R FK
BAEELEHRA - WIREEAFRHER
Bl RIKBASEEWAR BEEE ZER MR
R -

(2) 11£453,888,000/% i 13 PARobinhoods 2
#FEEE © H A Group Honour Assets
Limited ([Group Honour]) AR AR
AIRERARE LITEIEHNITE=92—
= > Group Honourf BRI #E L A 2
BHA - WIREESFRARGH - &2
HRERRAEAZERNDPESZ -

(3)  1£453,888,000/% % 17 LA Robinhoods 2
% FEEE 0 E P Foremost Time
Holdings Limited ([ Foremost Time] )
BRERARATIRERNE EITFESIEHITT
=52 — 1 E# - Foremost TimeF
REEREEDEHA - WIRIEES K
BI&EG - REBREEHEEAEBZER
MHEER o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(a) Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each of the Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) The 453,888,000 Shares are registered in the name of Robinhoods
Development Limited (“Robinhoods”), of which Able Promise
Holdings Limited (“Able Promise”) is entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, one-third of the voting power at general
meetings of the Company. Able Promise is wholly-owned by Mr.
YUEN Chow Ming, who is therefore deemed to be interested in
these Shares under the SFO.

(2) The 453,888,000 Shares are registered in the name of Robinhoods,
of which Group Honour Assets Limited (“Group Honour") is
entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of the Company. Group Honour
is wholly-owned by Mr. SO Yiu Cheung, who is therefore deemed
to be interested in these Shares under the SFO.

(3) The 453,888,000 Shares are registered in the name of Robinhoods,
of which Foremost Time Holdings Limited (“Foremost Time") is
entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of the Company. Foremost Time
is wholly-owned by Mr. YUEN Wai Keung, who is therefore deemed
to be interested in these Shares under the SFO.
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(b) REBEB zRH 2 EXEER

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Beneficial interests in the shares of associated
corporations

8 E B

BEZROHE
L E A B Number of shares RESLBD L
Name of held in the Approximate
EEnE Bt 5 associated associated percentage of
Name of Director Notes corporation corporation shareholding
JRINEA 5 & 1 Robinhoods 7o A% four 33.33%
Mr. YUEN Chow Ming Able Promise — & one 100%
BB E 2 Robinhoods 7Y A% four 33.33%
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung Group Honour — B one 100%
JR {258 5t & 3 Robinhoods s four 33.33%
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung Foremost Time —h& one 100%

GEE

(1

Ik PO B% A% 9 B3 Able Promise® & - MM
Able Promise B RIS A2 BB 2
AR B RMBAEEWERES
Robinhoods&z & i 17 B i &= ©

It PO B% B% 15 FR Group Honourd& & -+ M
Group HonourB# EHF L EEERE 2
DAl BRELAEEREAEA
Robinhoodsiz & i 0 By iz o

It PO B% % 15 B Foremost Time¥s A » M
Foremost TimeBRER LA EHR
ZRA e At REREEHERESR
Robinhoods&z & i 19 B i = ©

Notes:

(1)  The four shares are held by Able Promise, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. YUEN Chow Ming. Accordingly, Mr. YUEN Chow
Ming is deemed to be interested in such shares in Robinhoods.

(2) The four shares are held by Group Honour, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. SO Yiu Cheung. Accordingly, Mr. SO Yiu Cheung is
deemed to be interested in such shares in Robinhoods.

(3) The four shares are held by Foremost Time, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. YUEN Wai Keung. Accordingly, Mr. YUEN Wai
Keung is deemed to be interested in such shares in Robinhoods.
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BEERAQATREEBEIE R
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(cc REBERGBZRA

BREARBIRZEEAF_A=Z+HH
EMmERESE (BT BERRITH
HWEWE27) BETESERTRBR
MEERE MR- N\E=F=+
—HBHEARTERA TITENERESS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(c) Long position in the underlying Shares

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 25 February 2006 (details are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements), certain Directors were granted share
options to subscribe for the Shares, details of share options
outstanding and exercisable as at 31 March 2008 were as

N follows:
BRE
PROEE
R #E
Number of
underlying
Shares BRIEE
RS comprised s Exercise
EEpg Date of 5t in the Exercisable price
Name of Director grant Capacity share options period per Share
RARLE —ZEtE EREAA 200,000 —ZZ+EMATLAE 0.975% 1T
Mr. YUEN Chow Ming MA+tH Beneficial owner ZEENERACTH HK$0.975
17 April 2007 17 April 2007 to 31 May 2009
BRELE —ZEtE EREAA 200,000 “ZZ+EMATLAE 0.975% T
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung MA+tA Beneficial owner “EENFRAZ+-H HK$0.975
17 April 2007 17 April 2007 to 31 May 2009
RE®TE ZETtF EGBAA 200,000 “ZTtEMATEAZE 0.975% T
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung MA+tA Beneficial owner “EENFRAZ+-H HK$0.975
17 April 2007 17 April 2007 to 31 May 2009
Blazsis —ZEtE EREAA 200,000 —ZE+EMATLAE 0.975% 1T
Mr. SUN Bo Quan MA+tA Beneficial owner “EENFRAZ+-H HK$0.975
17 April 2007 17 April 2007 to 31 May 2009
R EHE ZZEtE EREAA 200,000 “ZZ+EMATLAE 0.975% T
Professor LEUNG Yee Tak MAt+tA Beneficial owner “EENFRAZT-H HK$0.975
17 April 2007 17 April 2007 to 31 May 2009
R XL £ 55 ERBEAA 200,000 ZERLENATHAE 0.975% T
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis MA++A Beneficial owner “EENFERAZ=T-H HK$0.975
17 April 2007 17 April 2007 to 31 May 2009
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(c) REBRAZRE (&)

BREXEEEIN R-_FENF=ZA=
T—B EFAREZBBEABERAE
N A sk R AR B OR B 2 B £ N 4R B AR
PR IREE %&Hﬁiﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%xv%%
TRFEBDBAME AR 5 2P 2 1E
o] # 25 30K ﬁ(\ﬁﬂﬁé?ﬁ %&H}%;ﬂ%
DI ZFHEREFS R SEENER
FoRR) » HRERE 5 R E R 55352
fERZASI A% 1In<Xﬁﬁ$aZiEuEﬂ%‘ME'<TFT“
BT RIZEM G AR F KRB 3P 2 (AR
WmYKE ©

EEWNBEBROIESF2ER

R EXTEERARE REBBEE 2 BN
RARRIR D 2w | S B 75 3R R I R 27 P %
BEN  RFACAEEBMERTINESSK
BEZBZEBIARMI8 R FRELHE
WEARB zROXESFMER Z#EF - K
BREMBEBITEBBEN AR HETMH
BARMER L EMNLY  BEEFIHSE
BB ZRBHRARKE 2 F LA NERE M
ABERESERER -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(c) Long position in the underlying Shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
Directors and their associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein or pursuant to the Model Code had been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’ Interests
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” above and note 27 to the financial statements, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their respective spouse or minor children to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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FERRRAQ2ARG R EER

2R

BEEMA - REZHFMABGRIEXVESE
3HATHFEZIERREMATR R
EENF=ZA=T—BEARFABEHTRA

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN

THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2008,
so far as the Directors are aware of, the following substantial

HI5%8 A L2 T B FEER - FBW T« shareholders had interests in 5% or more of the Company’s issued

share capital:

RBRHZEAR Long position in the Shares
R R R R E
BHABED
FERRER B e Approximate
Name of Capacity/ BERGHEA percentage
Substantial Nature of Number of of shareholding
Shareholder interest Shares held in the Company
Robinhoods BEm#EA A
Beneficial owner 453,888,000 48.76%
Able Promise REGEE 2w
Interest of controlled corporation 453,888,000 48.76%
Group Honour REGEE 2w
Interest of controlled corporation 453,888,000 48.76%
Foremost Time REGEE 2w
Interest of controlled corporation 453,888,000 48.76%
Oceanup EnlEEA
Beneficial owner 128,000,000 13.75%
A B K % (BT =) S N
China Water (Note) Interest of controlled corporation 128,000,000 13.75%

M3k © 32 5 B& 19 LAOceanup Investments Limited ~ Note: These Shares are registered in the name of Oceanup Investments

([Ooceanupl) BEER - ZRA A APEIK
BrEEWBAF -

& E X PR EEE S -
— B ARAREEFMAEEHE
FEZBRRE MY ELHEE MR
KEREBROPHESSIIRA ©

R-ZZEZENEF

Water.

[1]
o

w
= W
><IFIo\|H
> +

I
el
S

H
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Limited (“Oceanup”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2008, no other interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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B TR A R T
SRAEMT RS EE R EE SRR ST
PES L 200 FTR

B

AR 2 B B SIS WA B T SR i
27 °

FTEHEBREF

C DR MR EAANF
Blzm 2BRERLKBEEDRzBE LM
—|T .

&

—mZABF 50.4%
—HEREFAE 99.2%
"EEBHRH

—mADBHE 8.5%
—RAAXDBEER 34.8%
EEYE

— A ER 8.6%
—RAREEEER 35.1%

MESFHWRFEMHEASEAER (5
E=ZMAE  BEARADEITRAES%)
RAKELERZETREF DEAREER
BFEETMEDER -

TEE

B

ARARZEEERRURERBANRANEEH
1782228 -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has any competing interests in any business
or has any interests in any business that may constitute direct or
indirect competition with the Group.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
27 to the financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of revenue, sub-contracting costs and purchases of
materials for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers,
sub-contractors and suppliers are as follows:

Revenue

— the largest customer 50.4%
— five largest customers combined 99.2%
Sub-contracting costs

— the largest sub-contractor 8.5%
— five largest sub-contractors combined 34.8%
Purchases of materials

— the largest supplier 8.6%
— five largest suppliers combined 35.1%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group’s major customers, sub-contractors or suppliers noted
above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out on pages 17 to 22 of this report.
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AR RAREBH > AAREBTRA
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ZERBR
AEBRAFEEANIELRZEEZEBNA124,000
BT °

EREEE®

BB EHRANEI2E  EFEeR T
AF+—A+t—HRIEZZES ([BRE
EBg]) - BERZEes BESEBNHEAES
MR EMEM [EZEZBgKIIES]
FrEs) e EmBEaEE  FBREZEg2ER
BEABEHMKEREF RAIEE - Wik
HERMIES - BREESKER=-RBIIE
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FEEE -

HEBRRER

AEBNERLEHREEF BN R
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public at the
date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounted to
HK$124,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Board
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on 11
November 2005, with written terms of reference set out in “A Guide
For The Formation Of An Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants adopted as the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review the financial reporting procedures
and internal control and provide guidance in relation thereto. The
Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis (as Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Ms. CHUNG Lai Kwok, Elaine and Professor
LEUNG Yee Tak. The annual results for the year ended 31 March
2008 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The Company’s auditors, Grant Thornton who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the AGM of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

YUEN Chow Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the members of Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Ming Hing Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ming Hing
Waterworks Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 123,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 March 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2008 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

18 July 2008
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(For the year ended 31 March 2008y Consolidated Income Statement

—BENE —ZTELF

2008 2007
B 3T F& T FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Y 3= Revenue 648,475 519,944
&I N Cost of revenue (564,664) (439,725)
EF| Gross profit 83,811 80,219
H A A R a= Other income and gains 6,845 1,575
DHRIEERX Distribution and selling expenses (629) -
THREX Administrative expenses (52,890) (35,371)
KERR Operating profit 37,137 46,423
ELEEED N Finance costs (6,511) (4,453)
MR BHARER Profit before income tax 30,626 41,970
TS i F Income tax expense (5.741) (7,654)
75 B A Profit for the year 24,885 34,316
KA Dividends 7,432 10,426
A1l B

HK cents HK cents

SREF Earnings per share
—&EXK - Basic 2.845 5.362
—#55 - Diluted 2.796 5.361
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (as at 31 March 2008)

—EENE —ZTTLF
2008 2007
B 5 FET FET
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
EEHRAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IERBEE Non-current assets
WM - WER&E Property, plant and equipment 14 107,126 29,333
TET L d %?ﬂi Prepaid land lease payments 15 22,071 -
& AR B8 51T Retention receivables 20 6,157 4,706
Eﬁ#ﬁfﬂfﬂ_m Pledged bank deposit 21 5,000 5,000
®ETEN FRIA Prepayments for investments 17 6,841 -
147,195 39,039
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 18 68 -
EREFEX TERIA Amounts due from customers of contract works 19 393,966 236,348
g5 K& H b e W R IE Trade and other receivables 20 35,266 50,871
B IRITER Pledged bank deposits 21 23,936 19,229
RekReEED Cash and cash equivalents 22 172,884 11,461
626,120 317,909
REBEE Current liabilities
ERNEFPEX TERIEA Amounts due to customers of contract works 19 3,707 -
E 5 & H b FRIE Trade and other payables 23 65,053 59,458
ERET Borrowings 24 209,803 108,593
IR Provision for tax 680 3,585
279,243 171,636
mEEEFE Net current assets 346,877 146,273
BEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 494,072 185,312
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
H i, & 1~ ZRIE Other payables 13,724 -
BE Borrowings 24 39,467 21,493
IEE T I8 Deferred tax 25 3,043 3,067
56,234 24,560
EEFRE Net assets 437,838 160,752
= EQUITY
fi& 72 Share capital 26 46,539 32,000
ik R B AR S Proposed final dividend 11 7,432 10,426
G Reserves 28 383,867 118,326
R Total equity 437,838 160,752
) o
Director Director
BB RE®

SO Yiu Cheung

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008

YUEN Wai Keung



b4 Bl %ﬂﬁi% FR 2 ‘g MING HING WATERWORKS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(R=ZEENF=ZA=+—H) ﬁ%ﬁ%%

(As at 31 March 2008) Balance Sheet

—EBEENE —ZTTLF
2008 2007
B 3T FET FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
EEHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IRBEE Non-current assets
RIB AR Z®E Investments in subsidiaries 16 79,857 76,261
RBEE Current assets
TET RIA Prepayments 892 174
JE BT 8~ B FR 1B Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 175,163 58,744
RekBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 139,622 66
315,677 58,984
REBAE Current liabilities
HiEMZBENREEBA Other payables and accruals 666 591
IR Provision for tax 281 506
JEA — A B /B A B 5k I8 Amount due to a subsidiary 16 2,171 -
3,118 1,097
RBEERE Net current assets 312,559 57,887
EEFE Net assets 392,416 134,148
= EQUITY
% 7K Share capital 26 46,539 32,000
#R R EAIR B Proposed final dividend 11 7,432 10,426
it Reserves 28 338,445 91,722
B Total equity 392,416 134,148
o ]
Director Director
BB RE®

SO Yiu Cheung

YUEN Wai Keung
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

ERE EXEE RRRS

& f RE
REx  ROWE A#EE Share  Capital EXEE REEF Proposed | HEH
Share Share  Merger option redemption Translation  Retained final Total

capital premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  profits* dividend equity
TEr TEr  FER  TExT  TEx  TExr  TEx  TEn  TEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

“EEREMA-H A1 April 2006 32,000 12,010 13,805 - - - 65,339 11,520 134,674
ZWJ*/M‘ |/KEE  Profit for the year/Total
BEANARESL  recognised income and

ek expense for the year - - - - - - 34316 - 34316

BERKE Dividend paid - - - - - - - (11,50 (11,520)
Rz ERE Share options granted - - - 3,282 - - - - 3,282
BEABRE Proposed final dividend - - - - - - (104260 10,426 -
RIBEL+E At 31 March 2007 and

ZR=+-8Rk 1 April 2007

“E5+ENA-H 32,000 12,010 13,805 3,282 - - 89,229 10,426 160,752

EERNEZEAARE  Exchange differences arising
ANEBEEL on translation of foreign

EXER operations recognised directly
in equity - - - - - 2893 - - 2893
REEEF Profit for the year - - - - - - 24885 - 24885

REETHAMAL  Total recognised income and

FYen expense for the year - - - - - 2,893 24,885 - 21,778

ERRE Dividend paid - - - - - - - (10448)  (10,448)
FZETLERERE Adjustment for 2007 final

AR dividend - - - - - - (22) 2 -
it BRE Share options granted

(Fi3¥27) (note 27) - - - 5,348 - - - - 5,348
Bl B Share options forfeited - - - (88) - - 88 - -
RiTERRERT Shares issued upon exercise of

2B (BiEE26(b)  share options (note 26(b)) 1878 20,094 - (3517) - - - - 18455
BATHRD (M3E26(c) Issue of new shares (note 26(c) 12,800 234,240 - - - - - — 247,040
RHETRX Share issuie expenses

(F3¥26(0) (note 26(c) - (9,55) - - - - - - (955)
BERR Repurchase of shares

(P 26(d) (note 26(d)) (139 (1,39) - - 139 - (139) - (1,539)
BRR#ARS Proposed final dividend

(F3E11) (note 11) - - - - - - (143) 743 -
R-ZENE At 31 March 2008

=B=1+-H 46,539 255,396 13,805 5,025 139 2,893 106,609 7432 437,838

* RERBIZEHEIGEEERMBERAZRF  *  The total of these balances represents reserves in the consolidated
1# - balance sheet.
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wz-—zE r=p=+-aurrm MAORERER
(For the year ended 31 March 2008) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

—EENE —TTLF
2008 2007
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RETHZHERE Cash flows from operating activities
B FT 15 B4 B & Profit before income tax 30,626 41,970
EEE Adjustments for:

T8 5 £t FH & RO B8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 115 -

¥  MENRKRMEZITE  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,462 6,452

B A Interest income (3,854) (1,499)

FBERX Interest expenses 6,511 4,453

BEEBEMHKNA S Excess over the cost of business combination (2,683) -

M E R Exchange differences 462 -

LEWE  BELZE Loss on disposal of property,

Z BB plant and equipment 228 325

ERGEE RN Equity-settled share-based

Sz wE compensation 5,348 3,282
RETZEESBHA Operating profit before working

288 & capital changes 45,215 54,983
FERL Decrease in inventories 554 -
Y ENEFEH Change in net amounts due from/to customers

TRFEEHFHE of contract works (153,911) (173,341)
B NHEMEWRZIAEM LD, Decrease/(Increase) in trade and

(38m) other receivables 24,124 (33,093)
FEU (R EB ZRIE R > (& A0) Decrease/(Increase) in retention receivables 15 (3,139)
5 K H b e A (Decrease)/Increase in trade and

CRL ) /1 other payables (5,454) 14,964
CEEBFSHA RS Cash used in operations (89,457) (139,626)
MEMEEMNRZF B IMHD Interest element of finance lease payments (543) (368)
RITERRHEMEE Interest paid on bank loans and other

BATFE borrowings (6,463) (4,085)
B U F & Interest received 3,854 1,499
BERBEEFGH CFEE) Hong Kong profits tax paid (net) (8,593) (4,788)
LEZEFE A 2R 2 F%  Net cash used in operating activities (101,202) (147,368)
RETB2HERE Cash flows from investing activities
B 1 55 17 17 F 8 0 Increase in pledged bank deposits (4,707) (13,002)
BEWE BELERE Payments to acquire property,

Fr st 5008 plant and equipment (9,314) (10,245)
HEWME  BERRE Proceeds from disposal of property,

Fr 15 5018 plant and equipment 209 =
®E T FRIA Prepayments for investments (6,841) =
(B AEHRE R FE Net cash outflow on business

(Fff 5£29) combination (note 29) (29,041) =
WEEEFMEA 2R F5 Net cash used in investing activities (49,694) (23,247)

=rR 5

=
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HEHERER gz-—s2/s=A=+ 8148
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (or the year ended 31 March 2008)

—EENE —_ZTZTLHF
2008 2007
FTET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000

METHZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BIIRMO SR FRE Net proceeds from issuance of shares 255,943 -
88 8] 1% {9 BT A< 308 Payments for repurchase of shares (1,535) -
MIEER New borrowings raised 259,134 213,679
EEEE Repayment of borrowings (186,142) (121,970)
BEMELYASHIEFE Net proceeds from finance lease arrangements = 7,122
BERENRZERL D Capital element of finance lease payments (4,756) (2,302)
AR R Dividend paid (10,448) (11,520)
MEEBAMEE ZHS/FH  Net cash generated from financing activities 312,196 85,009
HeERBLEBEYHEM Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

(RA) =58 cash equivalents 161,300 (85,606)
HBREENZREER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

HEeZEEY of financial year 11,461 97,067
ME 3 ZE R Exchange differences 123 -
BBREERZEER Cash and cash equivalents

ReZEY at end of financial year 172,884 11,461
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(For the year ended 31 March 2008) Notes to the Financial Statements

—REH

BEKBIZERBERAG ([RATF]) &—
MR _ZTEMFERA-_+HEARESE
SaAMAIzZEHEERAR - ERGOR
BEABMERSGMBERAR ([BRAT]) X
REM - EEXZ2XEMEMREENLE
B R B 16 R E RE1809-1812FE °

ARRREMBAR (TREE]) 2]
EMEBAERBRHBAKHEITE
B REENENETRZ AT
BHNRENBEIRRSE - RAF
€ - AREED AN F BRI HK
ARAS ©

BERZZEZELF A+ —BBEBZA
NEFRPRER - KRR AEH Ming
Hing Holdings Limited BF 1% i% A R A
A ] ® 2% & [Ming Hing Waterworks
Holdings Limited B3 S K %= iR B R A
all e

EERR ARAZHRBEERRFTR
Robinhoods Development Limited (— f&

REBRIESEMAILZ AR °

FMNER123BME 2B RERIIRE
BEGFMASEM BT BN HERERE
A(TERMBHEREER]  BEMAES
AU BREER - FESIEN @2
B)  BEAREFRAARFTELQF
R BB XX P RE 75 E AR R 2 @R R R
RE T Am B

BE-T2/\F=A=t+-RAILTEY
MBERRER-FEAFLA+\AE
EEgHETIH -

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 May 2004 as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its principal place of
business is Units 1809-1812, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of maintenance and
construction works on civil engineering contracts in respect of
waterworks engineering, road works and drainage and slope
upgrading for the public sector in Hong Kong. During the year,
the Group has started to engage in provision of water supply
services in Mainland China.

Pursuant to the special resolution of the Company passed on
11 June 2007, the name of the Company has been changed
from “Ming Hing Holdings Limited B E#E s B BR A 7" to “Ming
Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited BF SE7K # 42 i% B R A &) .

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company
of the Company is Robinhoods Development Limited, which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements on pages 41 and 123 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (including all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008

were approved for issue by the board of directors on 18 July
2008.
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BB ERMMEET gz-z2/ e=p5=1—nuram

Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

2. BMEHiIREEBIT2EHEME 2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
& E A

21 RAEFEEERZHITRKE 2.1 Impact of new and revised HKFRSs which
RAIZERBUBHREENZE are effective during the year
E=l
AEFBERMANATRFETRNE The Group has adopted all the new and revised HKFRSs
R B3 7R 4R [ 5 R ) PR R AT R A which are first effective during the current financial year
EEIRBMBGMEER - IRMZE and are relevant to the Group. The adoption of these new
Al MEEFT R BB B 5 5 2R and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes in
TEREHAEE @t REHRE the Group’s accounting policies and had no significant
RNEE  TERIAEENTBRE financial impact on the Group’s financial statements.
BREAMBEE - AL - BA® Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is required.

BEARELAE -

AEBECERAEESTERE 1R The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
(F18E]) [ HMEMEY] —&ER the amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
BHERIRBENBREEAETR Statements — Capital Disclosures” and HKFRS 7 “Financial
[EWMITAE: BEICRERE -8 Instruments: Disclosures”. Certain information presented
TEERBHEBTEANEI2HR in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 “Financial
[ERTIA : 23R T2II0E Instruments: Presentation” has been removed and the
FEREWIG - WRARPFHFE relevant comparative information based on the
BRIBBEEBGETEAF 15 (KB requirements of this amendment to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 7
) REB G EERE TR has been presented for the first time in the current financial
EE2IEBLLERER - year.

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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2. RMFATREEIT 2BERUK

wEER @\

22 EMERERZHITRE
BB BREEN 2
E='

AEHELEEREFEAATERME
RN B F E AR 2 H#ra] R & (&

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)
2.2 Impact of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet effective

R EBMBHREER

EREHERE 1R HBRRHEH]
(mEdT)
FEeENEDNT RERA
(m53])
FRGIENEIH RARBIHERE
e
ERUEREES KRB BERNER
F2% (BE3T) —BEEMRFE
EAYBREES EBAK
23% (5 337)
ERHBREER mEHH
285
B ERZ 1R HBRRHZF-THE
(mEdT) FHIARRER
EEZER
FEeENENG HBTIA: 25-WiHE
(&B3T) BRIARER
EEZEE
BRGIERE395 BBIE:BIRE
(8T -THENBIA
REBELZER
EAG KRS ES HBIR: RE-THE
275 (=57 BRIARER
EEZEE
EE(ARHBEE RBEE R
EEREZES)
-REENR
5k BRHERE RPRHGE?
REREZES)
-REE1R
EE(ARNBEE BRGIERZ 195
BlREZEY) -RENEEEN
-REE 1R RE - SEEXAT
REAERBER'
25 (ERUBES REREGHEEEL
REREZES RO ERBIA

)
-RES2H (B8

in the current financial year:

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 Amendment

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

Amendments to

HKAS 1 (Revised)

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKAS 39

Amendments to

HKFRS 7

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Amendments to
HK(IFRIC)-Int 2

— ==

Presentation of Financial Statements 3
Borrowing Costs 3

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements *

Share-based Payment - Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations 3

Business Combinations *

Operating Segments 3

Presentation of financial statements — Puttable
financial instruments and obligations arising
on liquidation 3

Financial instruments: presentation - Puttable
financial instruments and obligations arising
on liquidation 3

Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement — Puttable financial instruments
and obligations arising on liquidation 3

Financial instruments: disclosures — Puttable
financial instruments and obligations arising
on liquidation 3

Service Concession Arrangement '

Customer Loyalty Programmes 2

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction !

Members’ shares in co-operative entities and
similar instruments 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

2. BMEHiIREEBIT2EHEME 2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
HEER 8 (continued)

22 EMERERZHITRE
BIEBMBREEA 2
& (1’

T RZEENF-A-BHARHA
a2 F R AR

2 RIETENFELA-BHHNER
a2 F R AR

R ZEEAFE A BHNUKH
a2 F R AR

R ZETENFER - BHNRR
a2 F R AR

%ﬁ“ @‘Eﬁf‘i@ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ(%iéﬂﬁﬂg
aHEBEANEBNZINERTE
SIERAWRER - RBER #EL/(
B-miRa ek GERVNETER)
HAM DB wE (EREF I
mR - BREREMESKER)
2R RE MR A WA M AE
PREBLD © RIER] TR Y AT EME
BRRNKFEERTE  BEREE
WEEHIEN - BRI GZ
FEITHAKRENBRERNAEY

o

i
iz

Iy

REFBBMBHREERE3%M
XBavtnestREIAZEE
FMmZEEERETE Fﬁéﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ
R - KEATNBB G ERE
275ARE M#J%QTE’JW@%%"\
ZEEREINRSEDRR S © 1IN
BB R B B B 1R N ok K TP B
REIMIENE 2GS REN AN
Pfr °i<<<§aTEI’J%C;‘%ﬁﬁ“$&%E€
AIE3 HEEBEAERFE27 5K
R ARKER - EE#%Q%’SEH%Z
WEEEDBRRORZS -

AEBEIEAEF AR REER]

FREMBHELEANTE - BHEAK
EREXFEANRTEHASEN

ﬁ?fﬁ“iﬁi’%%&iﬁ(%% 2
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2.2 Impact of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective
(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

HKAS 1 (Revised) affects the presentation of owner changes
in equity and introduces a statement of comprehensive
income. Preparers will have the option of presenting items
of income and expense and components of other
comprehensive income either in a single statement of
comprehensive income with subtotals or in two separate
statements (a separate income statement followed by a
statement of other comprehensive income). This
amendment does not affect the financial position or results
of the Group but will give rise to additional disclosures.
Management is currently assessing the detailed impact of
these amendments on the Group’s financial statements.

The revised HKFRS 3 introduced a number of changes in
the accounting for business combinations that will impact
the amount of goodwill recognised. The revised HKAS 27
requires that a change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary to be accounted for as an equity transaction.
Furthermore, it changes the accounting for losses incurred
by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a
subsidiary. The revised HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 shall be
applied prospectively and will affect future acquisition and
transactions with minority interests.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the
other new or revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to
state whether they would have material impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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3. TEEHERRBE

MENEEMBERRARBZIESS
BEINENR T - = BHAEIN » &%
ERRCEERERARMEZRFE -

31 mBEE

BB ERTIRIBESLKATRE
B GFEEBER T X Z @5 BRF

i o

REIR REVBmAEDERS
aHlEt RRER - AR F A LR
ROVEREEBHERFART
ZERABEBMEL - EERER
RARAIRE L F A RERA ML
A o RE IR W H S R
MRS - HATIERR R H I
BERBEATE2®RE DM
ATEEGHERI RHE P HRE -

324G EE

HEMBHRREEBARAREKE
RABEEF=A=+—RH2Z¥H
B -MBARXEAWERN
(IR RRERGEZEHEER) BFE
AR BEEGREEZEBRRILEA
R A"EBARRABZABEERR
5 BHREAEEARBI P2 RE
BUWHIGHELEARB BN - RE
BERTTME AR5
HEERNIEREEARMARER
BRON - MARER T - RERER
AR Y s REERR o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions have been used in preparing these financial
statements. Although these estimates and assumptions are
based on management’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates and assumptions. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 “Critical
Accounting Estimates and Judgements”.

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Company obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All material intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

3. FESHHBERE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

32HmEEE®) 3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

XBEMHERBEAAR - AW
R EBAHOKADEEMRE
AIRREENRABRRELEEH
ERAENAE(BEIAREE) -
EBEHRATIER 5 B AR
BE MMBETERTIANMBEEK
AENABRZARERENE 5
MEBEHOBEREERAAR -

33MEAF

B B8 2 ] 45 AN B2 1 B R R I L BA 7
Ko BB IR AR T A6 B SR 5 R AR a1
ZER(BREFHKRENER) - X5
HASEEEEN S —EBN 2
EEREAFHEBAAITRRER Y
BERERERHEZE o

MT%@EZ%ZETJE}FEW&JEW
BERARRBERIIER - AR
J%W%AEZ&,%E&BZKE?DH
EAREE R -

34 B

BEEXFAHRABERNEER
HIFmRB R BB E AR RE
(BRIABE) ZDAENER -

WEELZBENTERARGS
BERBRINEREE  HRILK
RRBERRERBEE - BESF
REERFEBEERE: WEEH
Elzia““ibzaﬁa’\ﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁ—l
BAORE  AIAETEREMNG
(Mt5E3.7) °
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Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. This method involves allocating the
cost of a business combination to the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities including
contingent liabilities assumed at the date of the business
combination. The cost of business combination is measured
at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the business combination.

3.3 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividend received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

3.4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group's interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities including
contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less any impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually at the balance
sheet date or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill
may be impaired (note 3.7).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Goodwill (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of

the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities over the cost of a business combination is

recognised immediately in the income statement.

3.5 Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue and other income is recognised when it is probable

that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and

when the income can be measured reliably on the following

bases:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

When the outcome of civil engineering contracts can
be estimated reliably, revenue from maintenance or
construction works on civil engineering contracts is
recognised according to the percentage of completion
of individual contract at the balance sheet date (note
3.10).

Revenue arising from water supply is recognised based
on the volume of water supplied as recorded by meters
read during the year.

Water supply related installation income is recognised
when the relevant installation work is performed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

3. TEEFHBERBE W@ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
36ME - - BRERRE 3.6 Property, plant and equipment
Yz WEREBEIIEKA (BIE Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which
BABRERERFEZEEEZEIH comprise purchase price and any directly attributable costs
BREBBEZEERR IR 2 B of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
FEAE BCAR) B 2 51T & RAEADRE for its intended use, less accumulated depreciation and
EEIAR o Hig 2 B ARE R EZIE any impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included in
BB B2 R REEHE |z 7] BE AR the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
SE - MZEBXAREWAIEAE asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
B stABECZKREME SRR economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
—IEBVEE (MER) - #IERR the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
EEHMAABRATIRES 2K reliably. All other costs such as repairs and maintenance
HFNEREEZNR - are charged to the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

ME - BERZEDIREMGEAIE Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
RFEBFTEE - AR AR plant and equipment less their estimated residual values
HstHerEE  HEEFRKE over their estimated useful lives. Leasehold buildings and
WHERESED IRFE3I 7% water pipelines are depreciated using straight-line method
RABSUAERE - M - BER at the annual rate of 3.17% and 4.85% respectively. Other
REEMIER D AAESRIERE items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
BRI FERAENE - using reducing balance method at the following rates per
annum:

B RERRE 20% Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
HEMERE 30% Leasehold improvements 30%
AE 20% Motor vehicles 20%
ek TA 30% Machinery and tools 30%
BEZAGAFE  MABERT The assets’ useful lives, residual values and depreciation
EFTERSH#HEATURG AR method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
(W@ A) - balance sheet date.

ME - BMERZEER DREER An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
STEAFEAKNHEZEETEEE upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
RREEFNRSEOERR - HEW expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on
¥ BELREESXZWELERE disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined
DERHEMSRIEFEEEERT as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
BzE=8ET  TRKZKFHE carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
e income statement.
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3. FESHHBERE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuep)

36MX - MERKE (1)

3.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

R TRERAMBREFARERSR
SIBRI NEHEITE - ERITIEN T
IRAIERARERSRERYE -
BB REENEEDRE -
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HEITREE - BRELBERR
BEFR  ZELBFETRBER
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Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

3.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and investments in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing. Goodwill is tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the assets’
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, which
reflects market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3. FESHHBERE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.7 kMBEEZRE (8)

3.7 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
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Impairment loss recognised for cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated are credited initially to
the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment
loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash
generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount but only to the extent that the asset'’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of depreciation or
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised.

A reversal of such impairment is credited to income
statement in the period in which it arises unless that asset
is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for the revalued amount.

3.8 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Leases (continued)

Operating leases - as lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in the income statement as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to the income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments represent up-front payments
to acquire the land use rights or leasehold land. They are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased assets.

Finance leases — as lessee

Where the Group acquires the right to use the assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present values of the
minimum lease payments of such assets are included in
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligation
under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance lease
agreements corresponds to those applied to comparable
acquired assets. The corresponding finance lease liability is
reduced by lease payments less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to income statement over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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3. FEEHEHERBE W) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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3.9 Financial assets
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Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade date. Regular way
purchase or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value. Derecognition of financial assets
occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments expire or are transferred and substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

The Group’s financial assets mainly comprise loans and
receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivatives
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost.

At each balance sheet date, loans and receivables are
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments beyond the average credit
period, and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables. If such evidence exists, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement of the period in
which the impairment occurs.
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When impairment occurs, the carrying amount of loans
and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in the income statement. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to income
statement.

If in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying amount of
the loans and receivables exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in the income
statement of the period in which the reversal occurs.

3.10Civil engineering contracts

When the outcome of civil engineering contracts can be
estimated reliably (i.e. where applicable, the percentage of
completion of the individual construction work is at least
30%), revenue from maintenance or construction works
on civil engineering contracts is recognised according to
the percentage of completion of individual contract at the
balance sheet date. The percentage of completion is
determined by reference to the value of works performed.

Provisions are made for any foreseeable losses when they
are identified and recognised immediately as an expense
in the income statement. Variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payments are recognised as revenue when
they are approved by customers and can be measured
reliably.
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3. FESHHBERE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

BIEARIRBEN B 3.10Civil engineering contracts (continued)
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When the outcome of civil engineering contracts cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that would probably be
recoverable or to the extent of the value of works certified
by the customers.

Amounts due from customers of contract works represent
contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less progress
billings and any foreseeable losses. Amounts due to
customers of contract works represent the excess of
progress billings over contract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less any foreseeable losses. Costs mainly
comprise materials, direct labour and sub-contractors’ fees.
Costs incurred during the year in connection with future
activity of a contract are recognised as amounts due from
customers of contract works. Amounts billed for works
performed but not yet paid by the customers are included
in the balance sheet under trade and other receivables.

Retentions, representing amounts of progress billings which
are payable to sub-contractors or receivables from
customers when conditions specified in the contracts
undertaken are satisfied, are included in the balance sheet
under trade and other payables and trade and other
receivables respectively.

3.11Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost of completion and applicable selling expenses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.12Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

In the separate financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are recognised in
the income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not translated. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain entities of the Group
are currencies other than HK$. For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities of
those entities at the balance sheet date are translated into
HK$ at exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated into HK$ at the
average exchange rate for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are dealt with in the Group’s translation reserve.
Such translation differences are recognised as income or
as expenses in the period in which the foreign entity is
disposed of.
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3ER e EE

3.13 Accounting for income taxes
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the income statement or in equity if it
relates to items that are recognised directly in equity.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at
the balance sheet date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date based on the taxable profit for
the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable
nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Changes
in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in the
income statement, or in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.14Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

3.15Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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3. TEEFHBERBE W@ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
5 EERA (#) 3.15Employee benefits (continued)

REBRKE (E) Defined contribution plan (continued)

AEERFELENHB AR 2B The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate

/A2 E— (8% H BT EEN P in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension

FIRAREEHE - ZEREMBERFR] scheme operated by the local municipal governments. These

2@5%1%%%%?5%ttﬁﬂ¢'9& PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
RIKEFHEIH - ZFHRNIRE percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension

A dUGR RS 5 B B B A R W as scheme. The contributions are charged to the income

=Mk o statement as they become payable in accordance with the

rules of the central pension scheme.

EEFRAZ R KRS £ Employment Ordinance long service payments

AREEBETRERECEASEIHS Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
TFEE  FEERERILEERRZSE required number of years of service to the Group in order
MEEEMBENRTE 2 RAKRS to be eligible for long service payments under the Hong
& o Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of the

termination of their employment.

G R ILEARFERBEBEIRE The Group is liable to make such payments in the event
ER - AIASEEBAEEINERAER that such a termination of employment meets the
HRBe - AEBDIBEARNRA] circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance. A
BN RABRE S ELBEE - & provision is recognised in respect of the probable future
HEHORBEEHZAEARNASHEH long service payments expected to be made. The provision
TR A AR 7% AT BE AR 2 R R R IB Y B is based on the best estimate of the probable future
EbE o payments which have been earned by the employees from

their service to the Group to the balance sheet date.

R E S EF Short-term employee benefits

LHWEEE MR ES T & B i i Short-term employee benefits are recognised when they
R atﬁﬁﬁé\ﬁﬁ%ﬁ HIERH accrue to employees. In particular, a provision is made for
HEﬁ%ﬁﬁ§$2¢1ﬁfoE SFEEEDR the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
BE - mBREBRSFIERTAEBR rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. Non-
XEEH TR - accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and

maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

URGZTZES#E Share-based employee compensation
FRALBRN Nz EERENSS Details about the accounting policy on share-based
PR BEMN T XM E3.16 compensation to employee are set out in note 3.16 below.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of recognising and acknowledging the contributions that
the eligible participants have made to the Group. Eligible
participants including employees (including directors),
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, consultants, advisers
or shareholders of or contractors to the Group or any
affiliate, receive remuneration in the form of share-based
compensation, whereby eligible participants render services
as consideration for equity instrument (i.e. equity-settled
transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date the
options are granted excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. The cost of equity-settled transactions
with parties other than employees is measured by reference
to the fair value of the goods or services provided.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised as an
expense in income statement with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve within equity. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
using straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the best available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised if there is indication that the number
of share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. Any adjustment to the fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the income statement
for the year of the review with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve.

On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting that relate to market condition (which is treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition
is satisfied).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other
payables, bank and other loans and finance lease liabilities.
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A
financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Financial
liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Bank and other loans are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently stated
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the
bank loans using the effective interest method.

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less
the capital element of lease repayments (see note 3.8).

All interest related charges are recognised as an expense
in finance costs in the income statement.

3.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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3. FESHHBERE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3191F H BT B R

3.19Financial guarantee issued

MBEREOBEREITA (IIE
RAELEENR - ATERFH
AR E RRARERBES XE
RN B ERTELERRZA
# e

HASEFELPHER  FER2R
REVI BN E F o B FE A FRORTE
RBBIEA - W EHERE R
HEWARE  ARARKEARERAR
RZEEEZASEBRRER - WE
YeE sk UM - AU ) R R
EWARAER W amRER S
¥ o

NEERBBELEWRA 2 ERERIR
ERFHR KSR B RPEH Y
BRERZBA - I - WERFTAE
AFIREERKAEBEITERI AR
MASBERECHBERELERK
HE (BN LRz BB R H#
i (HER)) - AR A -

3.20f BB R A

FRBEBERARELRIIERX -

3R E

EEEBNRHBRERY SRR
TZRBHENBILIER  BEER
RASLEBRRMERILE - BZE
I SRR L/ K B - B ZAHE
RARAE-

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in income
statement on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in income statement over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised if and when it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee and the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where applicable.

3.20Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

3.21Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within equity, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends are approved and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

3. FEEHBERE @) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
32E®THA 3.22Equity instruments

RARETZ D TATIRE WER Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

2B IR BT ATIER o the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

BEARRzER TREANERT Repurchases of the Company’s own equity instruments is

BEEBRARNE - REBRAQFZ recognised and deducted directly in equity. On repurchase

O BERMERRKOEEZ of the Company’s own shares, the amount equivalent to

THERBAMNEBEEEARED the par value of the shares repurchased is transferred from

#HeBE  HE - BITHHEEAR retained profits to capital redemption reserve. No gain or

AlzER TATER NG RERER loss is recognised in income statement on the purchase,

& o sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.
323EEAL 3.23Related parties

FETRIERT - BE A A RER A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

SEEAEI AT :

() BRESTEESHELEBR B (i) directly, or indirectly through one or more
EEZAEUNED: 5V /N intermediaries, the party (1) controls, is controlled, or
REE  KZARA) AEH is under common control with, the Company/Group;
Frizdl » sREARR), AEE (2) has an interest in the Company that gives it
RERES  QBEEARRZ significant influence over the Company/Group; or (3)
s WERUEARR K has joint control over the Company/Group;

SEEABATE  HQVEE
ARB/REB 2 K RES

B
(i) BEFAEBERT (i) the party is an associate;
(i) BEEH AERIZEHIEEE (iii) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.23Related parties (continued)

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or its parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv)
or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Company/Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Company/
Group.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

4.1 Civil engineering contracts

Revenue from maintenance and construction works on civil
engineering contracts is recognised according to the
percentage of completion of individual contract which
requires the estimation of gross profit margin of each
contract. The gross profit margin of individual contract is
determined based on budget of the contract which was
prepared by the management of the Group. In order to
ensure that the total estimated contract costs are accurate
and up-to-date such that gross profit margin can be
estimated reliably, management reviews the costs incurred
to date and costs to completion frequently, in particular
any costs over-runs and the variation orders from
customers, and revise the estimated contract costs where
necessary. If the actual gross profit margin differs from
the management’s estimates, the contract revenue to be
recognised in the next financial year will be adjusted
accordingly.

4.2 Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is determined by management
based on the credit history of its customers and the current
market condition. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in the financial position of the customers.
Management would re-assess the amount of impairment
for receivables, if any, at each balance sheet date.

4.3 Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3.6.
The estimate useful lives of property, plant and equipment
reflect the management’s estimation of the periods during
which the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets.
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4. EESTHEF R HE & 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.4 EHFERIELERIE 2 &5 4.4 Estimates of current tax and deferred tax
AEBAESETEERBMH
B YEARETHEREZSER
S ABR R T 2 B R/ E A H
BT o RS IERZERERRRNE
e NEHESEBEELR
% T HARD 2 P15 B OB FE B TE
BELEYE

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination is made.

5. s s Hitl AR &= 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Wes (TREIAREE 2 &3 5R) HE MU A An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, and
P E Yok (NN other income and gains is as follows:
rEE
The Group
—EENE —ZTTLF
2008 2007
TERT FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
W = Revenue
TARIBENZRER Contract revenue from maintenance and
BEIRZEHOWKE construction works on civil engineering contracts 640,708 519,944
K iR 75 W S Revenue from water supply services 4,762 -
HKEBELRE Water supply related installation fee 3,005 -
648,475 519,944
Hi g A R W= Other income and gains
RITH B IA Bank interest income 3,854 1,499
BMHEEBEHKAZ Excess over the cost of business
&8 (fF7E29) combination (note 29) 2,683 -
FIEHWA Sundry income 308 76
6,845 1,575
F N Total income 655,320 521,519
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into two operating divisions —
waterworks engineering contracting business and water supply
business. These divisions form the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information.

The principal activities of the operating divisions are as follows:

(i)  "Waterworks engineering contracting business” segment
involves the provision of maintenance and construction
works on civil engineering contracts in respect of
waterworks engineering, road works and drainage and
slope upgrading for the public sector in Hong Kong; and

(i) “Water supply business” segment involves the provision of
water supply services and water supply related installation
services in Mainland China.

The Group determines geographical segments as its secondary
reporting format. In determining the geographical segments,
revenue is attributed to the segments based on the location of
customers, and assets and capital expenditure are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the assets.
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6. PEER @) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
XKD Business segments
KEIRRBER HAEH
Waterworks engineering Water &a
contracting business supply business Consolidated
ZEENE —ITELE CZBENE —2T+E5 ZBENE -Z5t%E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
TER TEr THT TETL TER FETL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
KEREE REVENUE AND RESULTS
PEH R Segment revenue 640,708 519,944 7,767 - 648475 519,944
PHEE Segment results 40,185 52,752 3,684 - 43,869 52,752
PEREMASE Corporate and other unallocated
WARRBX income and expenses (6,732) (6,329)
37,137 46,423
BEM K Finance costs (6,511) (4,453)
MNBRAEHAET Profit before income tax 30,626 41,970
MEHEY Income tax expenses (5,741) (7,654)
KEERT Profit for the year 24,885 34,316
BB R R FINANCIAL POSITIONS
PHEE Segment assets 481,157 332,479 115,867 - 597,024 332,479
PEREMANREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 176,291 24,469
BEAE Total assets 773,315 356,948
PHEE Segment liabilities 54,170 58,867 27,648 - 81,818 58,867
PEREMASE Corporate and other unallocated
8 liabilities 253,659 137,329
BEAE Total liabilities 335,477 196,196
Hit R OTHER INFORMATION
BERRY Capital expenditure 9,796 16,550 74,005 = 83,801 16,550
REREH Depreciation and amortisation 7,497 6,452 1,080 = 8,577 6,452
B ERAHKA Excess over the cost of business
k| combination = - 2,683 = 2,683 =
NEREENRD N Equity-settled share-based
ZHE compensation 5,348 3,282 - = 5,348 3,282
—EFT)\FFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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6. DHWER @ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
#h & 7 &P Geographical segments
BB FE R &e
Hong Kong Mainland China Consolidated
ZBENE _TTHHF ZBENF —TTLF ZBENF -TTLE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
TR TER TEL TER THER FiER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
2B E Segment revenue 640,708 519,944 1,167 - 648,475 519,944
Htrp HER Other segment information
PHEE Segment assets 481,157 332,479 115,867 - 597,024 332,479
BERRY Capital expenditure 9,796 16,550 74,005 - 83,801 16,550
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7.

P | 7. OPERATING PROFIT
rEE
The Group
—BENE —ZTTLHF
2008 2007
TERT FE&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R AIDEECEi] Operating profit is arrived at after charging:
TR EIEESGH
T8 T 4 Hh A8 & 5K I8 8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 115 -
ME - WENEEZITE  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
-BBEE — owned assets 6,147 4,828
- HEEE — leased assets 2,315 1,624
8,462 6,452
ETRA(BIEESRME) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
— ¥4  EZBEREWEFN - salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 85,177 59,419
— R IK4E R 51 2= = — retirement benefits scheme contributions 3,409 2,449
— DA & S B AR D — equity-settled share-based compensation
Xz E 1,709 -
90,295 61,868
KEHEER Operating lease charges
— T RETF - land and buildings 1,408 984
— B R s — plant and machinery 8,479 5,447
9,887 6,431
% R B & Auditors’ remuneration 613 525
HEME  WERZE Loss on disposal of property, plant
2 B8 and equipment 228 325
ME 5 51855 Net foreign exchange loss 227 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

8. MEMRA 8. FINANCE COSTS
rEE
The Group
—BENE —ZTTLHF
2008 2007
THER FE&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
UTEEZMNEER : Interest charges on:
FERAFANEBHEE Bank loans wholly repayable within
ZHRITER five years 5,717 4,085
BEMREMFKZFEEMD  Interest element of finance lease payments 543 368
FERAFARNEEZ Other borrowings repayable within
HEgE five years 251 -
6,511 4,453
9. FiIfEHEX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
rEE
The Group
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
THER FE&TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REFZENERT 1A Current tax for the year
—BEFE/ - Hong Kong profits tax 5,820 7,167
— XS — Enterprise income tax 88 -
5,908 7,167
TFEBERE Over provision in prior years
—BENEH — Hong Kong profits tax (143) (447)
RIERTE (M52 25) Deferred tax (note 25) (24) 934
Frig8 i = Income tax expense 5,741 7,654

BB TG TR A F E (4 5 B R B % T
B17.5% (ZFZFTLF 1 175%) 55 °
R EAREME ([FE]) EENDE
Frisii ([REMmEH 1) DREFREHE
BEBIRBOIGE - BRCEMBHM
K H25% °

76 —ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the year. Enterprise income
tax ("EIT”) arising from the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") is calculated according to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC. The applicable tax rate for the EIT is
25%.
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9. FREBIMA X )

10.

11.

WERAREANE 2SR BB AT
SRR ANZEHRAT

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before income tax at applicable tax rates as follows:

rEE
The Group
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
FTHET FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B BT 15 4 Bl v A Profit before income tax 30,626 41,970
RERNEEREAER Notional tax on profit calculated at the rates
B METE 2 applicable to profits in the jurisdiction
i F) % & IR concerned 5,565 7,345
BERBMBAZHRBEFE  Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,178) (155)
NIRRT 22 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,143 402
FPRHAERNEREMEER  Tax effect of temporary differences previously
I not recognised = 248
FFEE 2 BEEE Over provision in prior years (143) (447)
H Others 354 261
FrisfiM X Income tax expense 5,741 7,654
REEGR 10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

KEF LA & F 424,885,0008 7T (=
T T L4 ¢ 34,316,000 L) * HR
9,010,000 Tt (Z EF £ &
10,581,000 7T) < m M E R A AR Z

MR ARIE

Of the consolidated profit for the year of HK$24,885,000 (2007:
HK$34,316,000), a profit of HK$9,010,000 (2007:
HK$10,581,000) has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.

B’E 11. DIVIDENDS

—EENE —ZTTLF
2008 2007
TET FHETT
HK$000 HK$'000

EHEBEBEIRARERE Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet

% 0.807E date of HK0.80 cent (2007: HK1.12 cents)

—EFEZLF  1.1281l)  per share 7,432 10,426
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

11. R B (%) 11. DIVIDENDS (continued)
FOR R AR IR BB R AN A | IR B A JE JiE Ak The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
RBEFERE LA FAMEE - REE Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
:giﬁj\izﬂ =t+—HIEFEBIRA meeting. Dividend paid and recognised as distributions during
LR B D IKE B /R10,448,0007% 7T the year ended 31 March 2008 amounted to HK$10,448,000
—ZEZT L 11,520,000 7T) ° (2007: HK$11,520,000).
12.8REF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
BREXBMNDEREKEE RN The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
24,885,000 &t (Z & & + &F profit for the year of HK$24,885,000 (2007: HK$34,316,000)
34,316,000 ) M FANBE BT ERER and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
/) AN #E 39 £1874,772,00008 (ZEZE + during the year of 874,772,000 (2007: 640,000,000). The
% : 640,000,0000%) 515 - REE=F weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for the
THHE=ZA=T—HLEFEZEETE year ended 31 March 2007 was adjusted to reflect the Shares
BRRMEFHBEEARE - ARBRH Subdivision as detailed in note 26(a) as if it had occurred on 1
26t 2 BRI DR 2 & - BN April 2006.
A IFER_EENFNA—BHE&LE
o
EREBERBFNDERETFERF The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
24,885,000 Tt (Z E & £ F profit for the year of HK$24,885,000 (2007: HK$34,316,000)
34,316,000 70) R F AR BT EBK and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
MEFHHE (ERBRARAME G R during the year adjusted for the weighted average number of
TEZERERETEATBRMIZE ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration
REFT ERRMNETHSIELDH on the deemed exercise of all outstanding share options of the
B)FTE  FEREOAT : Company into ordinary shares which is calculated as follows:
—EENFE —TTLE
2008 2007
RAESRERERF Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
Z$¢EE§§? 17 issue during the year used in the calculation of
L3 A hn e 19 B basic earnings per share 874,772,000 640,000,000
BHEBREMRSE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in
EHEERRIEZE respect of the share options granted
(Mt &E27) (note 27) 15,217,000 108,000
ARstEEREERF Weighted average number of ordinary shares
2 R AR N 1 B for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share 889,989,000 640,108,000
ZTT)\FF R ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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13.EEREREBEAEMS 13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS’
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEM =2 (a) Directors’ emoluments

g RE BAER  UEHESR
RENEN SRR ARHXA

Salaries,  Retirement 2R
allowances benefits  Equity-settled
#2  and benefits scheme  share-based aE
Fees in kind  contributions compensation Total
TETL TETL TERL TEL TERL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEENE 2008
HTEE Executive Directors
R L& Mr. Yuen Chow Ming - 1,014 - 38 1,052
BRELE Mr. So Yiu Cheung - 1,014 12 38 1,064
RERSEE Mr. Yuen Wai Keung - 1,014 12 38 1,064
BYFHTEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
BEBALL* Ms. Chung Lai Kwok, Elaine * 45 = = = 45
Atk Mr. Sun Bo Quan 100 - - 38 138
fEREL! Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond # 70 - - 38 108
2INEYE Professor Leung Yee Tak 120 - - 38 158
REXEE Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis 96 - - 38 134
431 3,042 24 266 3,763
Fe o 2R ERER NEHEE
RENER IR S
Salaries, Retirement ZHE
allowances benefits  Equity-settled
#&  and benefits scheme share-based ke
Fees inkind  contributions  compensation Total
TAR TER TAL TER TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EE+E 2007
HITEE Executive Directors
RIMBEE Mr. Yuen Chow Ming - 1,014 - - 1,014
BREeis Mr. So Yiu Cheung - 1,014 12 - 1,026
RE®LEE Mr. Yuen Wai Keung = 1,014 12 - 1,026
BYFHTEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
FRixis Mr. Sun Bo Quan 50 - - - 50
MERET Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond 120 - - - 120
RINEHE Professor Leung Yee Tak 120 - - - 120
REEE Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis % - - - 9%
386 3,042 24 - 3,452
* RIETLEFT-ATHARAEERE *  appointed on 15 November 2007
# MRZZEZELF+—-A—HBEfF #  resigned on 1 November 2007
MEEENEIRBEREREEZ No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in
EENFRZBETELF=A=1+— respect of the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.
BIEFEZEMME -

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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BB ERMMEET gz-z2/ e=p5=1—nuram

Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

13.EENSREBAEME @)

(b) EEREHF AL

AEERMEFEZABZRHFA
ITEER=2EF EMEERLX
BE - -ENTESMERSHIIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for both
years included three directors whose emoluments have been
disclosed above. The emoluments paid to the remaining

EATZHEHAT two highest paid, non-director individuals are as follows:
—BENE —ZTTLHF
2008 2007
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e EMEEYRET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,608 990
RAKAE FI T &4 3K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 20 24

DARE 5 85 E AR (D Equity-settled share-based compensation

<tz wfE 557 -
2,185 1,014

LiMARRHIFEEALEBAZ
M @BmNF T E :

The aggregate emoluments of each of the above two
highest paid, non-director individuals fell within the
following bands:

AE

Number of individuals

—EENE —TTLF

2008 2007

1%1,000,000/% 7T HK$1 - HK$1,000,000 1 2
1,000,001% 1,500,000/ 7t HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 -
2 2

() REBEE_ZEZENGFR_ZZTLF=
A=+T—HIEFEAN KEELE
MEEFIAMN ARG T AT
EAME  (ERTBERSEMARE
Bk EEMAREE % 2 RZE)HAE
RBERAEE

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008

(c) During the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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14.9% >  BERR®E 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
FURE: S
kRE  RENR BER
Fumiture, k8 - I8 *ESR  RRIR
BF fixturesand  Leasehold Motor  Machinery Water Construction &it
150 The Group Buildings  equipment improvements vehicles  and tools ~ pipelines in progress Total

TiEL TR TiEL TiEn TEn TR TR TEL
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000

RZBZREZA=1-8 At 31 March 2006

WA Cost - 2718 1,864 15,351 10,656 - - 30,589
ZifHE Accumulated depreciation - (1,000 (478) (4,007) (5,544) - - (11,029)
FAOFE Net hook amount - 1,718 1,386 11,344 5112 - - 19,560
REFE Net book amount
R-ZENENA-H At 1 Aprl 2006 - 1,718 1,386 11,344 5112 - - 19,560
RE Additions - 583 1,403 7,167 7,397 - - 16,550
e Disposals - - - (329) - - - (325)
g Depreciation - (377) (541) (2,853) (2,681) - - (6,452)
R-ETHEZA=+—-0  At31 March 2007 - 1,924 2,048 15,333 9,828 - - 29,333
RZEZHEZA=+-H At 31 March 2007
AR Cost - 3,266 3,267 21,627 18,053 - - 46,213
2itiE Accumulated depreciation - (1342) (1,019 (6,294) (8,225) - - (16,880)
FA3E Net hook amount - 1,924 2,048 15,333 9,828 - - 29,333
RAFE Net book amount
R-ZELEMA-H At 1 April 2007 - 1,924 2,248 15,333 9,828 - - 29,333
ERAE Translation adjustment 1763 304 - 9 - 765 50 2,891
RE Additions - 3,885 1,589 3207 1,251 - 28 9,960
BAZBEHRE Additions through business

(Pi5£29) combination (note 29) 4,955 7838 - 255 - 19,543 1,250 73,841
e Disposals - (103) - (334) - - - (437)
il Depreciation (377) (967) (828) (3,238) .777) (275) - (8,462)
RZBENEZA=+-R At 31 March 2008 46,341 12,881 3,009 15,232 8,302 20,033 1328 107,126
R-ZBENEZA=+-F At31March 2008
A Cost 46,726 15,195 4,85 24,83 19,304 20,313 1328 132,005
ZirifE Accumulated depreciation (385) (2,314) (1,847) (9,051 (11,002) (280) = (24,879)
BEFE Net book amount 46,341 12,881 3,009 15,232 8,302 20,033 1328 107,126

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

14. 9% - BERKRE®E 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

82

RAFE B mEAEREESN
REEMEZEN T ERNE 646,000 T
—TEHF : 6,305,000 7T) o

R-ZEENF=A=1+—8 U@ER
EFRAFBCEENEREFHEDTAA
BEHEBKRTAE@BFE 2505
7,134,000 7t (ZEZ L4 : 8,025,000
& 70) 2,193,000 T (ZEZE £ F -
2,971,000 7T) °

MfsE20FT B BE B & BB ZWER
FROFEFEOMNDT

(continued)

During the year, additions to motor vehicles and machinery and
tools financed by new finance leases were HK$646,000 (2007:
HK$6,305,000).

As at 31 March 2008, the net book amount of assets held
under finance leases included in the net book amount of motor
vehicles and machinery and tools amounted to HK$7,134,000
(2007: HK$8,025,000) and HK$2,193,000 (2007: HK$2,971,000)
respectively.

The analysis of the net carrying amount of the properties which
were acquired through business combination as detailed in note
29 is as follows:

—EENE —ZTTLHF

2008 2007
FTERT FA&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
£ B A AR I In Mainland China,

THHERS held under:
- RAHEE — long-term leases 2,344 -
—HHEE — medium-term leases 66,538 -
68,882 -

T BTG B Representing:
BT Buildings 46,341 -
TE T LA &R IE (M s 15) Prepaid land lease payments (note 15) 22,541 -
68,882 -

BEAUBHRAM  REMWEZ
EEFBRBRTERNATK - EF
RARAEEAEEZABMERZE
/S

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Up to the date of these financial statements, the process to
transfer the legal title of these properties is not yet completed.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group is entitled to lawfully
and validly use these properties.
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15. At LB ERE

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

rEE
The Group
BB\ _—_ZTTt+E
2008 2007
THER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RZBTLF /ZTTRF Carrying amount at 1 April 2007/2006
KR E = -
b 3 & Translation adjustment 857 -
FREHEHAE Addition through business combination
(M$3E29) (note 29) 21,799 -
FOBR 2 54 Amortisation charged (115) -
RZTBENFE/ ZTTLF Carrying amount at 31 March 2008/2007
ZA=t—H®OKREE 22,541 -
SR - Analysed into:
HAERBEED Non-current portion included
ERBE in non-current assets 22,071 -
FFARBEENREEH Current portion included in
(B 5E20) current assets (note 20) 470 -
22,541 -
16. Hff & 2 7] 16. SUBSIDIARIES
b NN
The Company
—EENE —TTLF
2008 2007
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
KRB AR ZEE Investments in subsidiaries
LG - KA Unlisted shares, at cost 79,857 76,261
O NGIE @ | Amounts due from subsidiaries 175,163 58,744
FE A — R BfY /B & Bl 3k 3A Amount due to a subsidiary 2,171 =

FEdTET B A B FRIR Y AR - R

ERANBARER -

free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

16. Mt B A & (&) 16. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RZBEENF=ZA=+—HZHEBRA Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2008 are as follows:
FIES

HME YL BETR FsElL FEXER

2B BERE RE ReEH

Place of Issued and Attributable  Principal
28 incorporation/ paid up equity  activities and
Name registration capital  interests held  place of operation
EEGFRER

Interests held directly

HEERERADA RERAES 12T (BER) 100% KREZR
Rich Path Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 Investment holding

(ordinary share)
BEEEREE
Interests held indirectly

REABRBEIRERRA B 13,800,000/ 7 (LK) 100% EEBUFLAIRABED
Ming Hing Waterworks Hong Kong HK$13,800,000 Civil engineering contracting
Engineering Company (ordinary shares) business in Hong Kong
Limited
PELATIRERAA B 15,0008 7T (&K 100% EEFBUFLIATIRABEH
Ming Hing Civil Contractors Hong Kong HK$15,000 Civil engineering contracting
Limited (ordinary shares) business in Hong Kong
AAMAERAF B 2,100 T (EER) 100% AREBLARIEABEY
Dominic Science & Technology Hong Kong HK$2,100 REBMZERS
Limited (ordinary shares) Provision of technical support

services on civil engineering
contracting business in

Hong Kong
DST Engineering Supplies Limited &% 100 7T (EER) 100% HEEBRELAIEYKEE
Hong Kong HK$100 Trading of civil engineering
(ordinary shares) materials in Hong Kong
THEBERAERAR B 10087 (E&EKR) 100% EE=%
DST Pipe Rehab Limited Hong Kong HK$100 Inactive

(ordinary shares)

84 — =T \FF5 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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16. Mt B A & (&)

16. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMAY BETR FEEE TIEEBR
2 BRRE RiE Rt
Place of Issued and Attributable  Principal
28 incorporation/ paid up equity  activities and
Name registration capital  interests held  place of operation
REXEHE 0 TEM 95% EEANFIATIRABEHK
Ming Hing - INFO JV Hong Kong N/A Civil engineering contracting
business in Hong Kong
REREKBERLDA RERLES 100% 7T (EEK) 100% HZEER
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands Us$100 Investment holding
Engineering (PRC) Limited (ordinary shares)
BEKE (RD) BRAF g AR 40,000,000 100%  EFERBREEEKER
PRC RMB40,000,000 Water supply business
in Mainland China
REARK(BE)ARDA* h 1,282,343% T 100% EFEAMEEEKER
PRC US$1,282,343 R
Water purification processing
technology research and
development in
Mainland China
REKHE (BR) BARAT REBRAEE 100X 7T (BEKR) 100% EEEXR
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands Us$100 Inactive
(Qingyuan) Limited (ordinary shares)
REMEKBREEIRERAR REREXHES 100% 7T (EEKR) 100% EELE
Ming Hing Water Treatment British Virgin Islands Us$100 Inactive
Engineering (PRC) Limited (ordinary shares)
BEKH (EM) BERAF RERRHES 100% 7T (EAK) 100% EEE%
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands Us$100 Inactive
(Leizhou) Limited (ordinary shares)
REKE () BARAT REBRZEE 100X 7T (BEKR) 100% EEEXR
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands Us$100 Inactive
(Nanning) Limited (ordinary shares)
REKE (FET)BRAA RERLES 100% 7T (EEKR) 100% EEL%
Ming Hing Waterworks British Virgin Islands Us$100 Inactive

(Guiping) Limited

* ZERARBTREREIMANELE -

(ordinary shares)

These companies are registered as wholly foreign owned
enterprises under the PRC Law.

— ==
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

17. BEFASRE

BE-_ZTTN\F=-A=+"HHRER
3R 736,841,000 T * BFE TIIE
I8 :

(a) AEERAEKL—HEERAIL
~ AR #2,000,0007T (BER LD
2,157,000 7T) WIEN € - Z & &
ARABEECEFRHEREEZINTR
A KR o

(b) AEBEAIERER—BPBEEE
=+ AR #3,000,0007T (FEE R4
3,184,000/ 70) AR € - %
BEELEPEERSEREHEKER
i"gg °

(0 AEERUJERESETHPRLEZ
% AR #E 25 2 157 1,500,0005%8 JT Y 78
e ZECEFEHEFHERE
BRI KRS o 1AM FE36(b)
Frit - NEEBRFEBEBIT LR
BEERERGEE  NKREEP /B0
E2HETRARZ -

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008

17.PREPAYMENTS FOR INVESTMENTS

The prepayments for investments amounting to HK$6,841,000

as at 31 March 2008 comprise the following:

The amount of RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,157,000) represents the deposit paid by the Group
for the potential formation of an equity joint venture which
will be principally engaged in provision of water supply
services in Leizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The amount of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,184,000) represents the deposit paid by the Group
in relation to the potential investment in a PRC entity which
will be principally engaged in the provision of water supply
services in Guangxi Province, the PRC.

The amount of HK$1,500,000 represents deposit paid by
the Group in relation to the potential acquisition of equity
interests in certain PRC entities. These entities are principally
engaged in the provision of water supply services in
Qingyuan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. As further
details in note 36(b), the Group has subsequently after the
year end entered into an equity transfer agreement to
acquire certain equity interests in one of the entities.
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18. & 18.INVENTORIES
rEE

The Group
BB\ _—_ZTTt+E
2008 2007
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R R AL E m — AR Raw materials and supplies — at cost 68 -

19. T KIRBER 19. CIVIL ENGINEERING CONTRACTS
rEHE

The Group
—EENE —TTLF
2008 2007
FTET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000

S ES ZKA Costs incurred to date plus

e R m recognised profits 1,364,340 756,160
WS ZEERIE Less : Progress billings to date (974,081) (519,812)
B A TEREE Less : Foreseeable losses = -
390,259 236,348
JEREFA4 TEFE Amounts due from customers of contract works 393,966 236,348
[ENEFAEK TIEFNIE Amounts due to customers of contract works (3,707) -
390,259 236,348

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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NFE=ZR=+—HILFE)

Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

20. B 5 & H B WK

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEE
The Group
—EENE —ZTZTLE
2008 2007
FHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 U IR (M 5 (a)) Trade receivables (note (a)) 7,956 32,330
JE AR B 3k 18 (MY RE(b)) Retention receivables (note (b)) 8,793 8,808
TEfT C A E B (M EE15) Prepaid land lease payments (note 15) 470 -
FENFRIERE® Prepayments and deposits 8,410 9,143
H b e U 318 (B 5 () Other receivables (note (c)) 15,794 5,296
41,423 55,577
B SASEREBEEERET Less: Retention receivables included
2 FEUR B8 FE under non-current assets (6,157) (4,706)
35,266 50,871
B 5E - Notes:
(a) REERERZZHHNE SHEWFIE (a) The ageing analysis of trade receivables (based on invoice date)
ZHRBROMWT as at the balance sheet date is as follows:
E Y
The Group
—EENF —TTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
=@EAR Within 3 months 7,658 32,149
mZENEA 4 to 6 months 140 -
+tE=NEA 7 to 9 months 920 -
TE+ZM@A 10 to 12 months 17 181
—F L Over 1 year 51 -
7,956 32,330

BYAHWIREPZEEHNBEERIE
60F - BN TREMEHERNK - 45
FHKEBEFP 2 EEHBER30A8 -

Credit period granted to customers of contract works is normally
30 to 60 days. Application for progress payments of contract
works is made on a regular basis. Credit period granted to

customers of water supply business is normally 30 days.

88 —ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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200 EZ REMEWFIE @)

MisE - ()

(a)

(#8)

RAEE R BEE R S X R AR B A PR

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually

EHEBESREWRBEB BB T - nor collectively considered to be impaired as at the balance sheet
date is as follows:
rEH

The Group
—EBENF ZETEF
2008 2007
THERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
e B sk R (B Neither past due nor impaired 7,165 32,149

i BB 0 AR R R E Past due but not considered impaired

=@EAR Within 3 months 503 -
mENXNEAR 4 to 6 months 138 -
tZhEA 7 to 9 months 84 -
TE+ZMEA 10 to 12 months 16 181
—F L Over 1 year 50 -
7,956 32,330

REERNBESRKKIBETERARM
TARTREAONREREETERS -
HEEFIERBTHA #ERES
¥ -ZERFEAEERZIZINEER
oF o WM R AN RS - Bty BEHRE
RRBARBE_TENF=A=+—
BB 5B YRR R ERE - A%
By ERZFERTEENR -

AHNIREEPEMZRETNHEBEELD
ZREBERBEINRRIEBEE OR
FEZAERZ A

REERANEMBEREBEIZERSMNT
ITBNEEMBNK - AKREEZFD
BHECRYRHEBRE mMEREHE
AASEREEDBRE  AEBRL
8 o FEt - BARZFHEBIE L BER
e

B 5 & H A R YRR (B4 W R B K
B)RBEEAZRAEAREZ A AAE
BE -

Trade receivables as at the balance sheet date mainly derived
from provision of maintenance and construction works on civil
engineering contracts. The related customers are mainly
government departments/organisation and reputable corporations.
These customers have established good track record with the
Group and have no history of default payments. On this basis,
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of the trade receivables as at 31 March 2008. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Retention monies withheld by customers of contract works are
released after the completion of maintenance period of the
relevant contract or in accordance with the terms specified in the
relevant contract.

Other receivables as at the balance sheet date mainly comprise
the advance payments to the principal subcontractors. The Group
has established long business relationship with these sub-
contractors which provide on-going sub-contracting services to
the Group and have no history of default payments. Accordingly,
impairment allowance is not necessary in respect of these balances.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables including the
retention receivables approximate their fair values at the balance
sheet dates.

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

21. EEFRITERK 21.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
rEE
The Group
—BENE —ZTTLHF
2008 2007
THER FE&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TIRITER Bank deposits pledged against certain
(F7E24) R — 1D EH bank loans (note 24) and a
REBE| ZETER performance bond 28,936 24,229
W AP AIERBEEIE N Less: Pledged bank deposit included under
ZEEFRITER non-current assets (5,000) (5,000)
FTAMBEEERET Z Pledged bank deposits included
B FIEITFER under current assets 23,936 19,229
DIEBIBRITFERAB T AELN - WIRE Pledged bank deposits, denominated in HK$, earn interest at
EFMEISERINE(ZEELF ¢ fixed rate ranged from 1.05% to 1.72% (2007: 3.0% to 4.0%)
3.0EZ4.0F) BBAE - FHRE=EHA per annum and have maturity period of 3 months on average.
BHH - ZEROTFRAREEBZ2EEE The carrying amounts of these bank deposits approximate their
HEEZAREEE - fair values at the balance sheet dates.

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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2.BERATEEY 22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AEE
The Group
BB\ _—_ZTTt+E
2008 2007
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITHEF LIRS Cash at banks and in hand 32,684 11,461
EERITIERK Short-term bank deposits 140,200 -
172,884 11,461
b NN
The Company
—EENE —ZTTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITHEFLRES Cash at banks and in hand 422 66
EERITERX Short-term bank deposits 139,200 -
139,622 66

RZZEZENF=ZA=+—H8 UARK
(TAR®SIENBRLEH A
5,562,000 L (ZEZT L F : ) o A
RETTEHABRAEME -

BITEFESARTERANETEZZ
B F R BEA B - BRI EIUREE
FHE0IEE1ISERNFE - F5
B—AH B RBESEEMREE
HzEREBERARSZARBEREE -

As at 31 March 2008, cash balance denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to HK$5,562,000 (2007: nil). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates. Short-term bank deposits carry interest at

fixed rate ranged from 0.30% to 1.15% per annum and have

maturity period of 1 week on average. The carrying amounts of

cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values at the

balance sheet dates.

— ==
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

23. B R HMEMNRIE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

B RAEMEBENKRIE(BEREBEEE Details of the trade and other payables including ageing analysis
BB ENZEZERERDN 225 of trade payables (based on invoice date) are as follows:
U
rEH
The Group
—EENE —_ZTTLHF
2008 2007
THET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 B 3RIA Trade payables
“E@AA Within 3 months 30,823 36,732
MENEA 4 to 6 months 4,024 5,607
+ZENE A 7 to 9 months 175 748
TE+=@A 10 to 12 months 103 268
—F M Over 1 year 2,862 818
37,987 44,173
JESHR B 3R I8 (Y 7 (a)) Retention payables (note (a)) 33 479
HEMZBENREEA Other payables and accruals 27,033 14,806
65,053 59,458
B3 - Notes:
(@) AEEEMzRB2NEBEEHNZRE (a) Retention monies withheld by the Group are released after the
BERBIT - completion of maintenance period of the relevant contract.
(b) BEHRHEMERMNRIE BREBERRER (b) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate
HEHZARERS - their fair values at the balance sheet dates.
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24. BORROWINGS
KEH
The Group
—EENE —ZTTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
E Current
RTER - AIRA Bank loans, secured (note (a))

(M 5% (a)) 197,649 103,961
HMER - ST Other loans, unsecured 7,466 -
mEREAE (D) Finance lease liabilities (note (b)) 4,688 4,632

209,803 108,593
FERE Non-current
WITER - BIEA Bank loans, secured (note (a))

(P 7% (a)) 31,649 15,000
HEMER - EIKHE Other loans, unsecured 5,491 -
mEME & E (MFED) Finance lease liabilities (note (b)) 2,327 6,493

39,467 21,493
fEE4 % Total borrowings 249,270 130,086
DT - Analysed into:
RUTEBREEZ Bank loans repayable

RITER

R—FRN Within one year 197,649 103,961

NE = In the second year 20,550 15,000

RE=ZZ=ZFRF In the third to fifth years, inclusive

(BiEERWE) 11,099 -
229,298 118,961
HihfEEE v EE Other borrowings repayable

R—FR Within one year 12,154 4,632

RE —F In the second year 2,786 4,396

RE=ZZ=ZFRF In the third to fifth years, inclusive

(PBREEEMF) 2,100 2,097
AFE Beyond five years 2,932 -
19,972 11,125

249,270 130,086
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

24 18 & (&)

B =E

(a)

— ==

iR

)

TERZERMOT

$R 1T E 207,099,000 5T (==
T4 1 118,961,000/ 7T) A
NAEIE O EEREER (M
32) © EF197,099,000 T (=&
T4 : 108,961,000/ 7T) AR
1717 5728,936,000/8 T (— T E+
F 1 24,229,000%870) (7E21) 2
HEEHEE - I RITER
114,402,000 L (Z 2T L F -
39,925,000/ 7T) A= L AR TIE
AHZWAEER -

B TZRITERARSE
20,000,000t (1 & ® &
22,199,000/ 7T) B K E B E -
ZHAAEE IR o
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24. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Bank loans are secured by the followings:

(i)

Bank loans amounting to HK$207,099,000 (2007:
HK$118,961,000) are secured by the corporate guarantees
issued by the Company (note 32) and of which
HK$197,099,000 (2007: HK$108,961,000) are secured by
charges over bank deposits amounting to HK$28,936,000
(2007: HK$24,229,000) (note 21). Apart from this, bank
loans amounting to HK$114,402,000 (2007: HK$39,925,000)
is secured by the proceeds on three civil engineering
contracts.

The remaining amount of bank loans amounting to
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,199,000) is secured by the pledge of income
generated from the water supply business.
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24. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) AEEHEETRERHES  mMxEAR (b) The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles and machinery and

EREARMENRE MHEEDRH—=
=FEAFE R IFENFZA=F—
B @MEHERTZRREEESEER

these leases are classified as finance leases having remaining lease
terms ranging from one to three years. As at 31 March 2008, the
total future minimum lease payments under finance leases and

REBEMOT : their present values were as follows:
rEH
The Group
—EENF ZETLF
2008 2007
THER FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
xEBEHEE Total minimum lease payments
R —F N2 E Due within one year 4,885 5,183
R —F 5 H Due in the second year 2,249 4,665
NE=ZEERFEH Due in the third to
(BEERME) fifth years, inclusive 115 2,135
7,249 11,983
B MEEEZ Less: future finance charges on finance leases
KRR E A (234) (858)
MEHEABRZERE Present value of finance lease liabilities 7,015 11,125
MmENEBEZRE Present value of finance lease liabilities
R—F N5 E Due within one year 4,688 4,632
R F 5 8 Due in the second year 2,214 4,396
RE=ZZFRFIH Due in the third to
(BRERWE) fifth years, inclusive 113 2,097
7,015 11,125
B AARBEEM Less: portion due within one year included under
R—FREH current liabilities
2B (4,688) (4,632)
WA ERBBEZ Non-current portion included under non-current
SEM B AL liabilities 2,327 6,493
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

24 B E ()
Misr © (48)

(0 MZZEZNF=ZA=+—H8 UAR#
JIMEREE A35,156,0008 L (— T Z
HF ) o [EE#%214,114,000/ 70
(ZZE T+ 4 : 130,086,000/ 7T) A
TCHIME °

(d) BEEEZEMLER

24. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) Asat 31 March 2008, borrowings denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$35,156,000 (2007: nil) and the remaining balance of
borrowings amounting to HK$214,114,000 (2007: HK$130,086,000)

are denominated in HK$.

(d) Other information about the borrowings:

REANERFRZ
Effective interest rate per annum
at year end
“EENF —ZZ

2008 2007
FEE® FER = B £ & = FEAE B E M &
Original Floating Fixed Floating Fixed
currency rate rate rate rate
RITER Bank loans BT HKS 2.48% - 3.86% - 52%-6.0% 5.8%
BITER Bank loans AR RMB 8.61% - 9.40% - - -
HiEH Other loans AE® RMB - 1.25% - 8.40% -
HEMEARE Finance lease liabilities T HKS 3.20% 3.25%  5.8%-59% -

EERNGEERAZRAERRE 2 AAE
BE - ERDEEZARENRERS
ARRERELTIHMNEERFTE -

(e) RZZEZENF=ZA=1T—80 AKHZ
‘Jibﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁmﬁgﬁﬁzn,%o,ooo,%m
—ZT L 146,660,000 7T) 0 H
57,960,000 T (Z T T £ F
23,733,000/ 70) WEHH A -

—ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
values at the balance sheet dates. The fair values of non-current
borrowings are calculated by discounting their expected future

cash flows at market rates.

(e) As at 31 March 2008, the Group had available bank facilities of
HK$273,660,000 (2007: HK$146,660,000),

out of which
HK$57,960,000 (2007: HK$23,733,000) was not utilised.
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26.

iIE % B 1R 25. DEFERRED TAX
ELEHBEEZESHNT - The movement of the deferred tax liabilities is as follows:
rEH
The Group
—EENE —TTLHF
2008 2007
FH&xT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R-ZZTETLE)/ At 1 April 2007/2006
“TEZXRFMNA—H 3,067 2,133
Rz &R (GFA) /S (Credited)/Charged to income
B (M 5E9) statement (note 9) (24) 934
R-ZZEENE )/ At 31 March 2008/2007
—EE+HF=A=+—H 3,043 3,067

BELERBABEARBTEREELS
AEMEEZERVERER BB

By 8B
B o

The deferred tax liabilities represent the tax effects of taxable
temporary differences arising as a result of tax depreciation

allowances being in excess of the accounting depreciation.

fig Z< 26. SHARE CAPITAL
ZEREE
HE Number of g
Par value ordinary shares Total
B 5 BT FET
Notes HK$ HK$'000
EE Authorised
RZZFEZRFMA—B K At 1 April 2006 and at
—EE+F=A=+—H 31 March 2007 0.1 1,000,000,000 100,000
DR Subdivision of shares (a) 1,000,000,000 -
R-ZBENF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2008 0.05 2,000,000,000 100,000

—ZZ N\FFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

26. A (@) 26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
ZTERHA
[ERE Number of PR
Par value ordinary shares Total
Bt 5 BT FET
Notes HK$ HK$'000
ERITRHR Issued and fully paid
RZZFEZRFONA—B K At 1 April 2006 and at 0.1 320,000,000 32,000
—ETt+F=A=+—8H 31 March 2007
B 1T S AR i T 2 AT AR (D Shares issued upon
exercise of share
options (b) 0.1 15,380,000 1,538
BT D Issue of new shares () 0.1 64,000,000 6,400
DD Subdivision of shares (a) 399,380,000 -
0.05 798,760,000 39,938
PR AT 0 i R i T B2 1T AR 19 Shares issued upon
exercise of
share options (b) 0.05 6,800,000 340
BITHAD Issue of new shares (0) 0.05 128,000,000 6,400
08 B % 15 Repurchase of shares (d) 0.05 (2,780,000) (139)
R-ZEBEENFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 0.05 930,780,000 46,539
MoaE - Notes:
(@) BER-_ZT+HE~AE+—BEEBY (a) Pursuant to the ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 11
AAREEASE  AAFEREAE June 2007, every issued and unissued ordinary share of HK$0.1

each of the Company was subdivided into two ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each (the “Shares Subdivision”). The Shares Subdivision
became effective on 12 June 2007. As a result of the Shares
Subdivision, the authorised share capital of the Company has

0IBTTZEHRTRARITERAR B
DA EREE0.058 7T 2 & EA
(TRBAF]) - BROSFER _TZLF

NATZHRER - ARBRAAF - & become HK$100,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 ordinary
A B Z K E AR 2 /100,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each and the issued share capital immediately
7+ 2 #32,000,000,0000% & & H & prior to the Shares Subdivision of HK$39,938,000 divided into
0.058 Tz LMk - MEBERGL S A 399,380,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each has become
7 BT AN Bl 39,938,0000% 7T (9 HK$39,938,000 divided into 798,760,000 ordinary shares of
4399,380,000/% & B E{H0.178 7L 2 & HK$0.05 each.

IR ) 2% A 39,938,00008 7T (5 A
798,760,000 § IR EE0.058 T 2 &
mpg) -
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BaE ¢ (8D

(b)

B o FrRITTE 2 15,380,00017 B A% 8
GtARB D HF 2 &) KRG HFE
111# 2.6,800,00017 & & 4 (T AR 1D 9
W2EB8%) MW RBREDBHET
37,560,0000% A& 2 7] B AR EI{E0.05% 7T
ZzEBR GIARDSIRZZEE) -
B4R {E518,455,0008 7T - REE R
B 1,878,000/ L JyaT ABRA + 8
16,577,000 L5t AR B E AR © 1t
Oh - RIBPRRIEEITE% 0 3,517,000
TERBEREZBERARNDREER -

RZZETLFWMA+=H - KAQFHESp
BlIKBEBARAR ([FEKE]) R
Oceanup Investments Limited
([Oceanup)) 5T 7 RIE W E - It -
AR B K75 [F) B35 B Oceanup R BB AN A
7] [ & ¥ 1764,000,000/% A" A 7] & i@
I - REERER0.80B T Gt ARM
DI/ ZEA) -

RZZEZLFAATHRD  AAAE—
% AN A A £ Z R’ K Robinhoods
Development Limited ([Robinhoods])
R—%EERETIREHZ ((REH
&) o B BRERERERSTR.53
BT 2B GEARD T2 ZER) 2
Bk A 8 32 88 = 77 & & % 128,000,000
f% A Robinhoodst A 2 LAk - A -
7N B B2 RobinhoodsE] M2 R B 1 % - &
It + Robinhoods& &R EiZ &A% 1.53
BT BRABHAHENREEREE
BRHECROBBEZEBR -HR_EZT
tFXRNAZ+—H ERRERERE
128,000,000% & i@ A% * Robinhoods 7k
R-ZEZEEFENA-TNLBERBRAZH
B2H#ETLEag-

FARBREEZMBREFENS
237,488,000/ 7T

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

The subscription rights attached to 15,380,000 share options
(before the effect of Shares Subdivision) exercised prior to the
Shares Subdivision and to 6,800,000 share options (after the effect
of the Shares Subdivision) exercised after the Shares Subdivision
has resulted in the issue of 37,560,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.05 each (after the effect of the Shares
Subdivision) for a total cash consideration of HK$18,455,000.
Out of the cash consideration, HK$1,878,000 was credited to
share capital and the balance of HK$16,577,000 was credited to
the share premium account. In addition, following the exercise of
the share options, an amount of HK$3,517,000 was transferred
from the share option reserve to the share premium account.

On 13 April 2007, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with China Water Affairs Group Limited (“China
Water”) and Oceanup Investments Limited (“Oceanup”) under
which China Water has agreed to subscribe, through Oceanup,
and the Company has agreed to issue 64,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.80 per share
(before the effect of the Shares Subdivision).

On 15 June 2007, the Company entered into a placement
agreement (the “Placement Agreement”) with Robinhoods
Development Limited (“Robinhoods”), a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and a placing agent. Pursuant to the Placement
Agreement, the placing agent has agreed to procure for the sale
of up to 128,000,000 ordinary shares held by Robinhoods to
independent third parties at HK$1.53 per share (after the effect
of the Shares Subdivision). On the same day, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with Robinhoods, pursuant to which
Robinhoods has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the equivalent
number of ordinary shares that are actually sold by the placing
agent at HK$1.53 per share. On 21 June 2007, 128,000,000
ordinary shares were placed to the placing agent and on 29 June
2007, the same number of ordinary shares was issued and
subscribed by Robinhoods.

The net proceeds generated from the above-mentioned
subscription and placing amounted to approximately
HK$237,488,000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

26. & 7S (@) 26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
MizE : (%) Notes: (continued)
(d) RAFE  ARAFRERZFERZ (d) During the year, the Company purchased its own ordinary shares
RRREBRET on the Stock Exchange as follows:
ERNERER
Price paid per share
BEROGEE B HEE
Number of shares BS B{&  Aggregate
£/ A Month/Year repurchased Highest Lowest price paid*
BT BT FHET
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
—ZZTLFN\A August 2007 680,000 1.050 1.000 709
—ZETNF=A March 2008 2,100,000 0.415 0.320 826
2,780,000 1,535
* BREEERRAX * included direct expenses
BRI MER - %K 139,000% As a result of the share repurchases, an amount equivalent to the
TTEORMNEME 2 S FEHRRE R par value of the shares repurchased of HK$139,000 was transferred
EBAERNEORE - from retained profits to the capital redemption reserve.

100 —ETN\FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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27. LR X § 2 fH 8

AARRBERDERIR_ZTRF
AT hHEBBRCERABERAEMN—
BER TS ([ZETE)) - ZTElE T
BERAREERSREHRNEEHER
BRERAEHSAIEE 2B/ - Zetdlz
AERSHEHEBREODARBZEHT * 3F
HITHBY RN TESHAEBRESP
HERZ,ER(HBAR) 2EF
(i) AEBESEMEEAR 2 EMES K
FEAEB (i) AEE A B QA
ZEP - fhEl - RE-EBA B
- BA - RERIFEBE : (v) £
EAIEEZEETIXTEA MEF
ERAIEEZEETZIZZANEMNE
EETEHS  B8EF0 - (HRG)ETZ
At'&HMO‘W&WﬁTZEW
TERERZLA -

ZEBlZ TR GRFBAmT

(1) AR A AIE R RS AR AR A A
VB TTIEREENE -

(2) ZFFEETERRERO 2REETS
BRTH =R 2&mE () AR
ﬂZ%ﬁﬁﬁ'“%ﬁ%Aﬁﬂ

HEEZR(AREABFERITE
%ZE—F&%Z“%—JLTT&%X%
%WZE?(TX%EJ))HXHX@

AR RAMEBRMAYN 2T
1& Ri) BEETAERKRL2EE
ERAEEAER S BFRBEHR
Bt AZ P BB RS 2 FHAkH
E °

(3) MERBERIRIEZEE 2GR - RN
BRIEHEBEERE 2 EEATE
T BB 10F 2 B A BERETT(E o #E
BEREETEBRERNVAERE 2 &
TR -

27.SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution of all the then
shareholders passed on 25 February 2006. The purpose of the
Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
the eligible participants have made or may make to the business
development of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include (i) the Company’'s executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive directors or a director of an entity
in which the Group holds an interest (the “Affiliate”); (ii) other
employee or officer of the Group or any Affiliate; (iii) customer,
supplier, agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder of
or contractor to the Group or any Affiliate; (iv) the trustee of
any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary trust the
discretionary objects of which include persons under (i), (ii) and
(iii); and (v) a company beneficially owned by any persons under

(i), (ii) and (iii).

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1) Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant.

(2) The subscription price in respect of each share under the
Scheme shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares; (ii) the closing price of
each share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of offer to the eligible
participant, which must be a day on which licensed banks
are open for business in Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange
is open for business for dealing in securities (“Trading
Day"); and (iii) the average closing price of each share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five consecutive Trading Days immediately preceding
the date of offer to the eligible participant.

(3) An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during the period which shall
not be more than 10 years from the business day on which
the option is deemed to have been granted. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised.
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27T. U 2 & (&)

(4) REBBETEMSER  ANEEXE
BB AR ZEERIERELY A
SENTABBAREETS - f/E
moREABA HEHEAE
A~ BERIABRE ZBERR L

B REAS R AR -

(5) ARBRBEZTEIRA QB EME
5t BB B 2 P A B AR T

RA FEITZ&ERMHEE

FBBARATRRMDOERZETE
HARRFEBEITRAZ10% - IRR
ATERBRRAE LBz aR
LR - SRz ZTEREL
RASHEBKRREAIRERS Lit#E
ZHEENEEZERITROBHEZ

10% °

ERZEZFEEREMBIE 2B
AT - ARFEREZA & RALQE
T E MG &P A B & WA RTT
82 BB EITER A TEIT 2R
NEEHE AXITBEEETHD
BT AREZ30%  BRIFAE IR
Rt - BRIFERN121E A IR
BTEIMAER2EE ZBRE
(BREITE - EEHkHARITE
BB BITEREITRETE
TZEh S8BT BEETKE

BITRNAEBRZ1% -

(6) ZAtEIHEMAMEI-_TTRF
“AZt+tHA)EFRTERER

K AR o

(7) MERCEI T TR A AR E %

RIRAKERENER -
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27.SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

4)

An option will lapse on expiry of the exercise period of the
option, on cessation of employment, or on cessation to be
customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant, adviser or
shareholder of or contractor to the Group or any Affiliate.

The maximum number of the Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The Scheme mandate limit
may be refreshed by the shareholders in general meeting
from time to time provided always that the Scheme
mandate limit so refreshed must not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval
of such refreshment by the shareholders in general meeting.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme, the
maximum number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. Unless approved by the shareholders, the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to any eligible participants (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-
month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the date of adoption of the Scheme,
i.e. 25 February 2006.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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27.SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Terms and conditions of the share options
granted

Details of the share options granted to certain directors of the

8 -HenE - BREIEERSZERER Company and certain employees, sub-contractors, consultants
SR and suppliers of the Group are as follows:
SERHBHA
ZADARE
R Company's R AM
BREZE share price ZAAFRE
Number of 765 T8 immediately  Company’s
options  Exercisable Exercise before share price on
BERERLAS Options grant date granted period pricc  grantdate  grant date
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
—EE+FE=A=1+AXAH 26 March 2007 (B35 (b))
(5% (a)) (note (a)) 38,400,000 (note (b)) 0.445 0.415 0.445
“ZELFMWANA 4 April 2007 (F35E (b))
(5% (a)) (note (a)) 22,300,000 (note (b)) 0.600 0.585 0.600
T+ FEWMAT LA 17 April 2007 (F35E (b))
(I 5E(a)) (note (a)) 2,400,000 (note (b)) 0.975 0.920 0.975
2L ERAT LA 17 May 2007 (B35 (b))
(5% (a)) (note (a)) 900,000 (note (b)) 1.420 1.425 1.420
“Z2Z+F+TAAA 5 October 2007 Lid(9)
12,550,000 (note (c)) 0.812 0.780 0.780
76,550,000
foaE - Notes:

—EE+F=ZA-+H - ZFET+
iEH@EI :E%ti@ﬂw%:ﬁ&
—EELFRAT AR ZBREH
B ﬁEIJ?%m,zoo,oooﬁ ~ 11,150,000
f +1,200,00019 }450,00013 » R 7E

26(a )ﬁﬁLE’JHﬂ”\ﬁfé BBl
JI% 4 8 B %= 38,400,00015 ~ 22,300,000
7+ 2,400,0001% }2.900,00017 ° ZAELFT
WENHBBITEERANQRRER K
MAOFZHEBIELFE -

ZEBRERR L B HGE - RN
BRES Eltz_:,?jliﬂﬁ T
BT -

R-EZT+F+ARAARENERES
Fo 79000001%)5%*&5%%”1% Gl)
REMBREERARE_ZTTNF+A
=t+—HB1f1 2325000@%&&8
HEANEBERAAEE  YR_ZTTAF
WA HE fEim - HE#2,325,0001 R &
HRHET—_EABEARREE  YR_F
ZHETAMBRER -

(a)

The number of share options granted on 26 March 2007, 4 April
2007, 17 April 2007 and 17 May 2007 was 19,200,000,
11,150,000, 1,200,000 and 450,000 respectively. As a result of
the Shares Subdivision as explained in note 26(a), the numbers of
share options have been adjusted to become 38,400,000,
22,300,000, 2,400,000 and 900,000 respectively. The respective
exercise price and the share price of the Company disclosed
herewith have been adjusted for the effect of Shares Subdivision.

These share options vest on the date of grant and are exercisable
from the date of acceptance of the options up to 31 May 2009.

Among the share options granted on 5 October 2007, 7,900,000
options vest on the date of grant and are exercisable from the
date of acceptance of the options up to 31 October 2009,
2,325,000 options vest after 6 calendar months from the grant
date and will expire on 4 April 2009, and the remaining 2,325,000
options vest after 12 calendar months from the grant date and
will expire on 4 October 2009.
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27. LR < ¥ 2 W& ()

BREZSBREMEFITE

B

RAMBFRNBREZSHOT

27.SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

weighted average exercise price

are as follows:

Movements of the share options and their

The movements of the share options during the financial year

—EEN\F 2008
BREZA
Number of share options
i i
I 23 “EENE
mE-A BRY BT EXk =A=t-8
At At
Options 1 April 31 March
AEA BRESLAS  Grantees grant date 2007 Granted  Exercised  Forfeited 2008
000 000 000 000 000
TH TH TH T T
EE “ETLERATLA  Directors 17 April 2007 - 1,400 - (200) 1,200
Eg “ERLERAMA  Employees 4 April 2007 - 3,100 (1,400) = 1,700
ZERLENATLR 17 April 2007 - 1,000 (700) = 300
CEELETATLR 17 May 2007 - 900 (260) (200) 440
“E2+E1+AAA 5 October 2007 - 3,800 - - 3,800
- 8,800 (2,360) (200) 6,240
RBaER “TTEEZACTRR  Suppliers of services 26 March 2007 38,400 = (29,400) - 9,000
fEm “ZT+EMARA or goods 4 April 2007 = 19,200 (5,800) - 13,400
“E22+E1+AAA 5 October 2007 - 8,750 - - 8,750
38,400 27,950 (35,200) - 31,150
aif Total 38,400 38,150 (37,560) (400) 38,590
SRMETH Weighted average exercise
EE (A7) price (HKS per share) 0.445 0.713 0.491 1.198 0.657
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27. AR < ¥ 2 i & () 27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
EREZEBRAEMEETHE Movements of the share options and their
B ) weighted average exercise price (continued)
—ETLF 2007
EkESA
Number of share options
RZZER RZETLE
EA-H BRI B B ZA=t-E
At At
Options 1 April 31 March
AEA BRERLES  Grantees grant date 2006 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2007
'000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
TR TR TR Th Th
RERE Mt ER ZEELE  Suppliers of services 26 March - 38,400 - - 38,400
ZE-fAE or goods 2007
At Total - 38,400 - - 38,400
BRmETY Weighted average exercise
@A) price (HK$ per share) - 0.445 - - 0.445
RZZBEENFZA=F+—AEERTEZ The exercise prices of the outstanding share options as at 31
BRENTEENTFER0.445BTE March 2008 range from HK$0.445 to HK$1.420 per share and
142087 ERZZEZENF=RA=+ their weighted average remaining contractual life as at 31 March
—BHMEFARGREDFHR1.30F 2008 is 1.30 years (2007: 2.17 years).
—ETAHF 217F)
RAREE - EEITE B BT R IE MR Regarding the share options exercised during the year, the
ETESBNARRRNEFHRES R weighted average share price of the Company immediately
BERI1ABITR1.48E T - preceding the exercise date of those options and on exercise

date are HK$1.41 per share and HK$1.48 per share, respectively.
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Notes to the financial statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

27. B XA 2@ E @) 27.SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

2B

— ==

REAFBRFEEREBREND
RE

RAFEERE ZEREONETASA
AREAFRISIBIL(ZETLF
0.08587T) - XTEE EERHEH
ZERENARERERE D B BT
ENERIAANEMERE - KHER
BYFOPEERRBEESHAEER —HIE
POER - BEUETEBEZBNAR
B ETEMLRHER2BRENAR
BNRBEARHEREOTEMETE

EREmTAZ AR ERBI(AERK
AZEARA ([ZERX]) FHE - KAZ
BAZHBHNDOT -

Fair value of the share options granted during
the financial year

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted
during the year is HK$0.151 (2007: HK$0.085) per share. The
fair value of the share options granted to the directors,
employees and sub-contractors was determined based on the
fair value of the equity instruments measured on the date of
grant. Share options granted to the sub-contractors are an
incentive to them for their continuing contribution to the Group
and it is impractical to determine the fair value of such incentive.
The fair value of the share options granted to the consultants
and suppliers was determined based on the market price of the
services provided.

The fair value of the equity instruments is determined by
independent valuers using the Binomial Model (the “Model”).
Details of the inputs to the Model are as follows:

RTFBEHMBHzERE
Share options granted on

—22LE 2T LF ZE2TLE Z2ELF

MAMA MA++tHR EA++tR +AERA

4 April 17 April 17 May 5 October

2007 2007 2007 2007

FRRERE (BT) Share price (HK$ per share) 0.600 0.975 1.420 0.780
BRITEEGET) Exercise price (HK$ per share) 0.600 0.975 1.420 0.812
T8 BB R 1R (%) Expected volatility (%) 38% 38% 38% 83.49%
% 2L B ) 22 (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.804% 3.968% 3.898%  3.744% -
3.768%

BB U 2 (%) Dividend yield (%) 5% 5% 5% 1.44%
TEHABE R A WU (4F)  Expected life of option (years) 1.6-1.7 1.5-2.0 1.5 1.5-2.1
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27. LR < ¥ 2 W& ()

RAVERFEECREBREND
SfE (8

RR-_ZEELFMANAB - —FTLF
MA+TEtER-_ZTLFRAA+LAR
HEBREN S - ARMREN2RE
TREFBTEZ LM RARAREKEL B
HIJEWEWE’]#%EHX{E Rt DM MmERE -

fﬁ%&%x})ﬁVPaaE*UIﬁ%Hx%ﬁxﬁlﬁﬂi’Eh

""""" MR _TTLETATAREN
E%Hxﬁéﬁﬁa EHKE 2R LT A
(ZEERF=ZATORA) EXARANE
BiREMmEE -

EHREEEEMBIREEEELEZE
BhEz A EEE TERSRTA
AEzZ@E8RAELNKEMGTME
E o R E AR BRI EG A REBR
BHEMITE -

BRENMBTE

RAFE - 508 RTE £ IR D
NZ@ESEEAS5348,0008 L (ZFF
+ 4 :3,282,00087L) - BFHEREK
HER BRI S ARD 2 wiE
& %2,203,0008 L (ZZEZ +F
1,094,000/ 70) BRER AWK A - M
BYEEkiEBEEMZBRERHIA
B m Stz wmESED B A1,709,000
BT (ZZEZTEF : &) K£1,436,000%
T(ZZZT+4F 2,188,000 L) * &
R AITH X - 18E£%85,348,000
BT (ZEZELF ¢ 3,282,000 L) B
‘aﬁ\ﬁ%%ﬁé@ﬁﬁ ARZES B AR

HEEURONIMNZRS - At EE
REMEE -

RZZEZENF=ZA=+T—HHEHRTEK
A FITE R RSB &33,940,0001
—ZZ 4 : 38,400,0001) 0 (E B
ARAREBEBITHRHDLH3.6%(ZFEZ+
F :6.0%) ° haz%ﬁﬁwééi%zz%ﬁ

F @ ¥ EBHAKAQF ,,\EMI\?&
33,940,000/ L @ & - W M A
1,697,0005%7?&’9%7$&,%©19,870,000;‘7?-5
TR RE o

27.SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Fair value of the share options granted during
the financial year (continued)

Regarding the share options granted on 4 April 2007, 17 April
2007 and 17 May 2007, their expected volatility is determined
by referring to the statistical analysis of the weekly share prices
of certain listed companies engaging in similar industry for two
years prior to the grant date. It is assumed that the volatility is
constant throughout the option life. Regarding the share options
granted on 5 October 2007, their expected volatility is
determined by referring to the daily share price of the Company
starting from the listing date on 14 March 2006.

The expected life of option is determined based on
management’s best estimates for the effects of non-
transferability of the options, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. No other feature of the options
granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

Financial effect of the share options

The amount of share-based compensation arising from granting
the share options during the year was HK$5,348,000 (2007:
HK$3,282,000). The share-based compensation in respect of
the share options granted to the sub-contractors and suppliers
amounting to HK$2,203,000 (2007: HK$1,094,000) was
recognised as cost of revenue while the share-based
compensation in respect of the share options granted to the
directors and employees amounting to HK$1,709,000 (2007:
nil) and consultants amounting to HK$1,436,000 (2007:
HK$2,188,000) was recognised as administrative expenses. The
corresponding amount of HK$5,348,000 (2007: HK$3,282,000)
has been credited to the share option reserve. No liabilities
were recognised as those are equity-settled share-based payment
transactions.

The number of outstanding share options which are exercisable
as at 31 March 2008 was 33,940,000 (2007: 38,400,000) which
represent approximately 3.6% (2007: 6.0%) of the Company’s
shares in issue on that date. The exercise in full of these share
options would result in the issue of 33,940,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company including additional share
capital of HK$1,697,000 and share premium of HK$19,870,000.
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28. # 18 28. RESERVES
KE The Group
BB\ _—_ZTTt+E
2008 2007
FTET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
A% 19 % & (Bt 5% (a)) Share premium (note (a)) 255,396 12,010
A P E (M () Merger reserve (note (b)) 13,805 13,805
B A R R s (B RE(d)) Share option reserve (note (d)) 5,025 3,282
& 7N O & 1 (BT 5 (e) Capital redemption reserve (note (e)) 139 -
FE 5 & (KT EE(f) Translation reserve (note (f)) 2,893 -
RE &M Retained profits 106,609 89,229
383,867 118,326
¥/ /N The Company
Ex
BRERE BERE
RHEE BAEH Share  Capital RBEF
Share Contributed option redemption  Retained nE
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
THET T AR FEL TEL TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(M35 (@) (&) (&) (PEEe)
(note (a)) (note (¢))  (note (d))  (note (e))
RZZEZRFWA-A At 1 April 2006 12,010 76,249 - - 26 88,285
Rz ERE Share options granted - - 3,282 - - 3,282
RERRT Profit for the year - - - - 10,581 10,581
BIRRHER S (F311) Proposed final dividend (note 11) - - - - (10,426)  (10,426)
WZFZLF=A=+—H At 31 March 2007 and 1 April 2007
E=EE+EMNA—A 12,010 76,249 3,282 - 181 91,722
REEH M Profit for the year - - - - 9,010 9,010
R-TELFERBME  Adjustment for 2007 final dividend
et A E - - - - (22) (22)
R AR (I 327) Share options granted (note 27) - - 5,348 - - 5,348
S 2 B g Share options forfeited - - (88) - 38 (50)
RITFEBRESZTZ®M  Share issued upon exercise of share
(B 3£ 26(b)) options (note 26(b)) 20,094 - (3,517) - - 16,577
BITHRG (H3E26(0)  Issue of new shares (note 26(c)) 234,240 - - - - 234,240
{7 31768 2 (M5E26(c)  Share issue expenses (note 26(c)) (9,552) = = = = (9,552)
B RM (KFE26(d) Repurchase of shares (note 26(d)) (1,396) = = 139 (139) (1,396)
BIR RS E (1) Proposed final dividend (note 11) - = = = (7,432) (7,432)
RZEENE=ZA=1+-H At 31 March 2008 255,396 76,249 5,025 139 1,636 338,445
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28. & &)

v YNEINE )

GER

(a)

BIBERERERANEENRE(—NA—
FEIMEED - LA RIEFT) + AR
RO BERZESAHSIETFARTR
BWEBEEZSOoREEAMSE AR
BIEARNEBEERAREBBREPE
HEZER -

AEBZAHRBBERBEAEERAR
BB D fE B 2 P B T AT 1T 2 A AT IR
BHBARZRALEERESNARE
BITNERBZBRARBEZZH -

RRBZHABBIERBEAEERAR
BB D fE B 2 P B T AT 1T 2 A AT IR
BHBARZRAERARTRARBAE
Rz RAEBEZEHE -

BRERBECRLBREZAAE
BEFBHNMRE3. 6P B AR X
NZz@ERANE R -

EAEORBREEZRSREBNLASE
RBERNEEZSHE -

N RHEREMEREBME3 12 Z
B BRRREBINEBN M B MRTE
ERERER -

28. RESERVES (continued)

The Company (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which a dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the aggregate share capital of subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange pursuant to the reorganisation of
the Group taken place before the listing of the Company’s share
on the Stock Exchange.

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the costs of investments in subsidiaries acquired over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company in exchange
pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group taken place before
the listing of the Company’s share on the Stock Exchange.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share options
granted as further explained in the accounting policy adopted for
share-based compensation in note 3.16.

Capital redemption reserve represents the transfer from retained
profits of the amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
repurchased.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations in accordance with the accounting policy adopted in
note 3.12.
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29. ¥ &4t

RZZEELtFNA=+—8 AAAH
FPRABEEEDTERGZTBRFER
(TEMBHBAF]) (KR FEE L EBT
GEITHAD T LhE ([EEH
B REXFEHFE AARRZWRE
MEEELFZaRKAT([ZHER
kD zBEE([EE])  BHELRER
A B # 90,080,000 (# & RN 4
99,983,000 7T) ([WKEBEIE]) - =40
BRKANRFREAKLIZBEBRE - HE
BHRETHE 2 BREKREHER -
EAWBEE 2 #E - P BEHEINA
"TE!HHF%_7 T+FLAZ+EHZ
A o

WHESERAFIOTAFTOTEIRNK
mEA HEMbipE ((HMAmE]) - LEE
BERARKNEETAKE  URTA
SERNEMHEE T HREHREKREZ
B0FAFRIEEHE - HARE - Hiths
ETURF - ARBEREARN _-FFT
+tEFZA=+—BFK °

BIEEEHE  ANQR) A EBREEER
BHRKNEBUAZNRE  fLod - KNE
EEMESE KR FHA—
HEZWHEZEAILTEEATKERIEH
EECER - RWBZHEWENEEZ
LEXERE  WESENBIRERE
/105,914,000 7t °
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Notes to the financial statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

29. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 August 2007, the Company entered into an agreement
(the "Main Agreement”) with the local government authority
of Ningxiang County, Changsha City, Hunan Province, the PRC
(the “Ningxiang Government”) (the Company and the
Ningxiang Government are collectively referred to as the
“Parties”). Pursuant to the Main Agreement, the Company
agreed to acquire the total assets (the “Assets”) of J#if & &
%58 B 2K 2 & (Hunan Province Ningxiang County Water
Supply Company) (“Ningxiang Water”) at a total cash
consideration of RMB90,080,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$99,983,000) (the “Acquisition”). Ningxiang Water is a
state-owned enterprise established in the PRC and it is an
exclusive water supply service provider in certain areas of
Ningxiang County. Further details about the Acquisition were
set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 September
2007.

The Acquisition was conditional upon the signing of further
agreements by the Parties or parties designated by the Parties
regarding the transfer of the Assets from Ningxiang Water to
the Group and granting concession to the Group for the
provision of water supply services in certain areas of Ningxiang
County for 30 years (the “Additional Agreements”). The
Additional Agreements were signed and subsequently the
Acquisition was completed on 31 December 2007.

Pursuant to the Main Agreement, the consideration could be
settled by way of assuming the liabilities of Ningxiang Water.
In addition, the results of Ningxiang Water arising from normal
operation from 1 April 2007 until the date of the Acquisition
were taken up by the Group. Taking into account the legal and
professional fees incidental to the Acquisition, the total cost of
investment for the Acquisition was HK$105,914,000.
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ERERKZABHEERABER
WEFEAHNAAERERXKE
FHEAMHEBEREEDT

Acquisition are as follows:

Wi E | AT
ZIREE
Carrying

amount before

29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Ningxiang Water as at the date of the Acquisition and the
corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the

WiEE1E A
ZARE

A REFE Fair value on

Fair value date of the

the Acquisition adjustments Acquisition

FAET FAET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
mME - WER&E Property, plant and equipment 68,986 4,855 73,841
e LM & R Prepaid land lease payments 10,779 11,020 21,799
eSS Inventories 598 - 598
g 5 K& H b e W R IE Trade and other receivables 9,229 - 9,229
BekIReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,130 - 3,130
BEREsEE Assets acquired 92,722 15,875 108,597
BEEBEHKAZ Excess over the cost of business
& 58 (M 5E5) combination (note 5) (2,683)
B KRR Total cost of investment 105,914
HERRNBERIAT The total cost of investment
AR is satisfied by:
R& Cash 33,207
AEEEL A RN EE Assuming the liabilities of
Ningxiang Water 72,707
105,914
EBAHELENIE LML An analysis of the net cash outflow
FEAMWAT - arising on the business combination
is as follows:
ReRE Cash consideration 33,207
Fruc s Z iR 1T 88 Bank balances and
MR & cash acquired (3,130)
MEH =5 Exchange differences (1,036)
29,041
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Notes to the financial statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

29

30.

EEe

u&%%m&m%%%zzuﬁz & N 4 R
25l &7,767,0007%8 7T &% 164,000/ 7T °
ZRBEER_ZZTLtFNA—BHE

7 BIAEFEEZ2 T N\FEF=ZA=+

—HALEFEzZRE AT ED R B

675,965,000 7T } 19,185,000 JT °

%Z%ﬁ%iéfﬂ@ﬁs%ﬂwﬁ%_ : jfT\ﬁiE

ZIKEI aWTL@ZEﬁHﬂZ/\ %«@-f%ii'
TN B RAFTRRI R R X4

EiE

H%E

BRAM BRI EMEBBOPARESESI - &
SRR _ZTZN\F=ZA=1t—HEHEH
MEREENT :

(@) HEZZZNF=ZA=+—H " ' &
EECFTHNBA—RBURFREZE
ErmEs  REAARK
2,040,0007T (05 7 492,264,000
BT WREBEEZZTZENF=A
=+ —HEXNRNEHPARE
1,000,0007T (A8 7 471,110,000
BIL)IERET & °

by RZEENF=A=+—H " B#E
THREF A RELEHEE MR
BiarMNz&ZERS@EBOT

29.

30.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Revenue and net profit generated from the water supply business
after the Acquisition amounted to HK$7,767,000 and
HK$164,000 respectively. Had the Acquisition been taken place
on 1 April 2007, the revenue and net profit of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2008 would have been
HK$675,965,000 and HK$19,185,000 respectively. These pro
forma information are for illustrative purposes only and are not
necessarily an indication of revenue and result of operations of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
Acquisition been completed on 1 April 2007, nor are they
intended to be a projection of future results.

COMMITMENTS
The Group

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following significant commitments as at 31 March
2008:

(a) As at 31 March 2008, the Group had contracted to
purchase an interest in a leasehold land in the PRC at a
price of RMB2,040,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,264,000), of which RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,110,000) was paid as deposit as at 31
March 2008.

(b) As at 31 March 2008, the future aggregate minimum lease
rental payable under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings was as follows:

ZEENE —ZTZELF

2008 2007

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

—F K Within one year 1,289 984
EE— fpmntion s In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(BREEEMS) 2,091 —

3,380 984
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31.

REHE (#)
AEEREEEHERESTYE - %
SN RP—E=%F  AFTHANE

MO EREEREREMERGR - &%
FHEMBREA%AES -

YN

R-BENFR-_ZTLF=A=1—
B+ AR A A ] B KA -

HRBBERFAR

o

BE-_TZT N\F=A=+—H £%H
MREBFEBBREPEREBERALARR
B BEZEAVB®mEK B BERER -
FrRFZFARRETEIARESR
HoEETRRERBREHZRBURE
ZEFDRREMEEZEBR (WA E
HARE - Bt - ZEFAREEETZ
BRRBEETBIEEARERZHBKRE
RERTFHE

RE—BMBFEE  AEBERRIEDT
RIRE-ROPHEREMERE &
E5A 147,000,000/ MALEE
z/ffiéﬁﬁﬂwtiuﬁlﬁ%ﬂaaﬁ%ﬁil
BExG  NMERIELPRE  EApE
NRE (WA RERRE - BEEC

E+FZA=Z+—BHILZHBRFER

FHMEBERETEERER - EERA
ZERERE \%ETKEIZWF%RL
ﬁXEﬁTﬂ ga

30. COMMITMENTS (continued)

31.

The Group (continued)

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of one to three years, with
an option to renew the leases and renegotiate the terms at the
expiry date. The leases do not include any contingent rentals.

The Company

The Company did not have any significant commitments as at
31 March 2008 and 2007.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS

As at 31 March 2008, a number of lawsuits and claims arising
from the normal course of business were lodged against the
Group which remains outstanding as at the date of these
financial statements. Claim amounts are not specified in the
applications of these lawsuits and claims. In the opinion of
directors, sufficient insurance policies are maintained to cover
the losses, if any, arising from these lawsuits and claims and
therefore the ultimate liability under these lawsuits and claims
would not have a material adverse impact on the financial
position of the Group.

During the last financial year, the Group received from a sub-
contractor two claims in respect of two completed projects
with claim amount of approximately HK$7 million in aggregate
and the legal advisers of the Group on these two claims opined
that the Group has a good case not only to defend but also to
counterclaim the overpaid amount, if any. Since the financial
year ended 31 March 2007, there has been no material progress
on these two claims. The directors consider that the claims will
unlikely result in any material financial impact on the Group.
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Notes to the financial statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

32.#ER 32. GUARANTEES
BHEGER  XARnEEMEKRTBE As at the balance sheet date, the Company had issued the
R - following significant financial guarantees:
—EENFE ZTTLF
2008 2007
TERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
IATEB ZER Guarantees in respect of:
RITEFETH BRARZ Credit facilities granted by banks to certain
EERE subsidiaries 207,099 118,961
RITA—RME LA Z Performance bonds issued by banks to
EPEHNEBEAORE a subsidiary’s customer 13,000 -
ETWEBARGI Y2 Finance lease arrangements entered into by certain
MEHELH subsidiaries 6,482 11,125
226,581 130,086
EERARHB LAV BERTEELASE In the opinion of the directors, the financial impact arising
RUTEZE - from providing the above financial guarantees is immaterial.
B.BEIRS 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
7K £ B A Robinhoods (— &l 1A 3 B 5 2 The Group is controlled by Robinhoods, a limited liability
HEAMKIEFERREMZBRA company incorporated and domiciled in the British Virgin Islands.
7)) ¥ #| o Able Promise Holdings Robinhoods is held as to one-third by each of Able Promise
Limited * Group Honour Assets Limited Holdings Limited, Group Honour Assets Limited and Foremost
X Foremost Time Holdings Limited (= Time Holdings Limited, limited liability companies incorporated
EURREBRLBESTMEIRFE and domiciled in the British Virgin Islands.
REMzZBRAAR) ZEBFA
Robinhoods= 7 2 — % # °
(i) E—EHBEEQARAZRS (i) Transactions with a related company

—EENE —TTLF

2008 2007
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
XHFEBRERAAZ Rental expenses for office premises paid to
MmAEBRe () Grand Media Limited (Note) 984 984
B & Note:
RAREERNALLE HFBFEEER The directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen Chow Ming, Mr. So Yiu
REBREEREBEHERARDHNESR Cheung and Mr. Yuen Wai Keung, have equity interests of 34%,
34%  33% N 33% 2 AR HE © 33% and 33% respectively in Grand Media Limited.
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B.HEEFIRZ (@)
(i) TEEBAE

BTRABEATERZER

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(ii) Key management personnel

Included in staff costs are key management personnel

ABHE : compensation which comprises the following categories:
—BENE —ZTTLHF
2008 2007
TERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e EREEREYAZE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,031 5,154

R EERMD Equity-settled share-based compensation
ZHE 1,247 -
& A& wE R Post-employment benefits 101 84
8,379 5,238
4. EXRERE 34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AEENESERBEERREASE R The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
ME2E MARRREHEDR - R the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
FEEMBOENFZ  THEEEEN provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

BARRBIANBEESKA - AMERAK
SENREMER -

AEBERERNBBLENEEZIZHEE
RIRHE - R T IRFER R A a5 5T
H-FEBEREEERRENRREEE
WEDERFR - BEFHFAEELRR
B AREREHBIRN TERRZBE
HBITH o

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital and to support the Group's stability

and growth.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing

ratio, i.e. net debt to equity. Net debt includes borrowings less

cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. To maintain

or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the

dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares.
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BB ERMMEET gz-z2/ e=p5=1—nuram

Notes to the financial statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

34.BEAXEE 1) 34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
AEBR_ZZENGER_TZLF=H The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 March 2008 and 2007
=T —BRELREELENT : were as follows:
—EEN\E —ZTLF
2008 2007
TERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
&% Debt 249,270 130,086
W RekReE Less: cash and cash equivalents and pledged
EY R ERTF K deposits (201,820) (35,690)
FETE Net debt 47,450 94,396
AR AR Capital represented by total equity 437,838 160,752
BERBFELE Gearing ratio 10.8% 58.7%
REDEZEAEREENEEES To obtain more funding for financing the Group’s working
REFERBRE[E  RNEEBRKE capital and exploring investment opportunities in the PRC, the
EETMAEEETE - 75T Group carried out two fund raising activities during the year
256,000,0008% &~ A 71 B& 15 (B 5T ABR 15 which were to issue 256,000,000 shares (after the effect of
STFEHTE)  FIERBEIFEERE Shares Subdivision) of the Company in aggregate with total net
237,000,000 7T « E It - #mAKFF proceeds of HK$237 million raised. As a result, the equity level
Ao - MEARBEL XA D ° was strengthened and the gearing ratio decreased.
3. eI HE 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) €@ T E¥EH (a) Categories of financial instruments
rEH The Group
—EENFE —TTLF
2008 2007
FTERT FA&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMisEE Financial assets
ER R pERFIE Loans and receivables
(BREBRTEFR (including cash at bank and
BEBRITFR pledged bank deposits) 235,441 83,150
MEaE Financial liabilities
2 # 5H B 7R B BR Financial liabilities at
MR E amortised cost 328,047 189,544
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5. &/ T A 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) T EER (&) (a) Categories of financial instruments

(continued)

b/ AT The Company
—EENE —ZTTLHF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MKEE Financial assets
B EWFRIE Loans and receivables
(BREBTEFR (including cash at bank and
B FIRITFER) pledged bank deposits) 314,785 58,810
BgasE Financial liabilities
28 B K AN B BR Financial liabilities at
MEsEaE amortised cost 2,837 591
(b) REMTEZY MUK EE (b) Financial results by financial instruments
rEH The Group
—EENE —TTLE
2008 2007
FH& T FE T
HK$'000 HK$’'000
eI AMKE Income, expense, gains or
A& losses on financial instruments:
T &EZFBUA Interest income or (expenses) on:
(M%)
BER K ERZE Loans and receivables 3,854 1,499
R SE R AN BR Financial liabilities at amortised cost
W B AR (6,511) (4,453)
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Notes to the financial statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

35. & T A (#) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c) ¥ ¥EBREEEEREE

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

REBAZTERENTERER -
BEmMZEAR(EER/MERAR) -
FEERBIMEBHERR - AEH
MEEBRREETIRESHMES
ELEANER ARSI UE
PR 2= 35 7 2 18 B 755 R 3R B 7 DR )
ERNEE BEREERTEZERE
BREEFSHENBERRIT - K
SEYENETEERREERE -
A AEBEZEEREREEA
BEHRITEH - AT LA EE
B I 1) 7 B I B A R B RO BRR

MHEREE
RN SR

AEENHNERAREBZRBRITE
E - KB IRTTEEREBF EE
B EASEEERSREN XA
B RFERPHAEEZRITEED
MR I8 AR D A M 243 8 -

7 8 B B A1 3 R L I 0
BoOREEEREEERTER
B TEEBEHEFEFEAD
S -
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policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks which comprise market risk (mainly interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by key management under the policies approved
by the board of directors. The Group does not have written
risk management policies. However, the directors and senior
management of the Group meet regularly to identify and
evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to manage
financial risks.

Financial risk management

Market risk — interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from bank
borrowings. Majority of the bank borrowings are arranged
at variable rates which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The interest rate and repayment terms of
the bank borrowings outstanding at year end are disclosed
in note 24.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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35. @ T H () 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) BEEREE @) (d) Financial risk management (continued)
FEERE - FRER(E) Market risk — interest rate risk (continued)

The following sensitivity analysis demonstrates the Group’s
exposure to a reasonably possible change in interest rates
on its floating rate bank borrowings with all other variables
held constant at the balance sheet date (in practice, the

A TBRESMER - WA i
REHFIE  NEERGEEAZ
FRIBITEENREERN ST

28 (AR ZERAGHHRT actual trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis
SIgRE N - WAl HIRBEAE below and the difference could be material):
#) o
BRBLEERR
REZEM R
Increase/(Decrease)
in profit after tax
and equity
—EENE —ZTTLHF
2008 2007
TET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
I, m Increase/Decrease in basis points (“bp”)
+100E B4 + 100 bp (1,929) (1,011)
-50E & - 50 bp 963 507
ERE D MBRESITE - DRE The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on the
RZZEZENGFRZZFEZTLF=HA= assumption that the borrowings as at 31 March 2008 and
T-AMNEEREERBYIEE 2007 existed throughout the whole respective financial
N—EHFE - year.
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Notes to the financial statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

3. &@MIT A &) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) BEERER (®) (d) Financial risk management (continued)
=ERE Credit risk
WX ZEFREBTEAEESED The Company’s and the Group's maximum exposure to
MRUBKEEZEME  BIAQFE credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to
AEEBEMEBNSEXNEERRAE perform their obligations in relation to each class of
ERBERAAZEEECREAEARK recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
MEE32FTEEARRELMERS assets as stated in balance sheets and the amount of
o guarantees issued by the Company as disclosed in note
32.
REBBEEBREZIZHETF - Bt The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously
HIEEERR R HFAREES selecting the counterparties. Credit risk on cash and cash
EEFANRT  FERSERS equivalents is mitigated as cash is deposited in banks of
ZEYHEE R R A WS R high credit rating. Customers of engineering contracting
e IRABEBCEPEE R business are mainly government departments/organisation
FFEBPY, M R ME ¥ > AifE and reputable corporations and thus credit risk is considered
ERBERE AEBEHEBEBAN low. Credit risk on other loans and receivables is minimised
BN ETRESEEN G - WA as the Group performs ongoing credit evaluation on the
FEREUGRIBEROELR - # it financial condition of its debtors and tightly monitors the
EEREEHEEMERKESEK ageing of the receivable balances. Follow up action is taken
RIEMEERE o 0E# X EHRRH in case of overdue balances. In addition, management
B AEESRIRETE © Ut reviews the recoverable amount of the receivables
N BERERESEEBERSHRA individually or collectively at each balance sheet date to
@ E EW ISR AT YL Bl & 5 - DARE ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
REAITUE 2 FEIRTEREE irrecoverable amounts.
B
HEBE L ER Liquidity risk
REBETERERAREE ST KM The Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements and
BT EERY RSB its compliance with lending covenants in order to maintain
TREQHEE UWERKEZZFH sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
RIS R AGEE A K8 5 of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
MERRBHEST K - liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
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35. €@ I A
(d) BERMRERE (&)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Financial risk management (continued)

BERELEE(B) Liquidity risk (continued)
TEHAEEHANT KA The table below analyses the remaining contractual
BRAGERANE TIOR8 - maturities of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
THAR BB 7K £2 [ ER AN ) B A] AL 1k E SR liabilities at the balance sheet date which are determined
B RERMHE IR E based on contractual undiscounted cash flows and the
HEHEET earliest date the Group and the Company may be required
to pay:
1A
EEREE
Within 1Z22F 2E5%
1 year or Between1 Between 2 5N £
rEEH The Group on demand and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
R-ZZZFNF=ZA=+—H Asat31March 2008
BE Borrowings 209,803 23,336 13,199 2,932
BREEZFFE (M) Interest payments
on borrowings (note) 4,379 1,437 1,035 144
2 5 e 3E Trade payables 37,987 - - -
JE& R & FIE Retention payables 33 - - -
HtENFRBLESER Other payables and accruals 27,033 769 2,306 10,649
279,235 25,542 16,540 13,725
R=ZZ2ZtF=A=+—H Asat 31 March 2007
BE Borrowings 108,593 19,396 2,097 -
REEZAFE (M) Interest payments
on borrowings (note) 3,118 701 38 -
2 5 e 3E Trade payables 44,173 - - -
JE R & FIA Retention payables 479 - - -
HtEARELETEA Other payables and accruals 14,806 - - -
171,169 20,097 2,135 -
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Notes to the financial statements (ror the year ended 31 March 2008)

3Bb. e T E W 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) BEERER (®) (d) Financial risk management (continued)
mEEEERE(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
1A
BEREE
Within 1225 2E5%F
1yearor Between1 Between 2 5F Nk
¥ YN The Company on demand and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
R-ZBENF As at 31 March 2008
=R=+-—-H
Hoh JE 5 FRIE R Other payables and
it EH accruals 666 - - -
FE 5t — R BT /B8 2 B KR Amount due to a subsidiary 2,171 - - -
2,837 - - -
R-ZBBLF As at 31 March 2007
=A=t-H
HiENRIERETER Other payables and accruals 591 - - -
591 - - -
B EE Note:
BEMEDNRBER-_ZZNFRZ The interest on borrowings is calculated based on the amount of
ZTLF=A=1T—HHKEEZ borrowings outstanding as at 31 March 2008 and 2007 without
BERBE;NE  BXESARKS taking into account future issues. Interest rate is estimated using
o FEDRBER-_ZZNEFRZ the current interest rate as at 31 March 2008 and 2007,
TELF=-A=+—HZERKRX respectively.
el &L
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6. mHEBRER

BRAMBHRREMEBOPIRESZSI - &
SENGEERRBEENERFENT ¢

(a)

RZZBEENF=AH » AEEH
—RKHBAARQRF —RBEERREES
EHRANRA([GEBMEILE
Eina ([EEHE]) UYL EE
AEI([EEAR]) - 5ERABE
PREBREEBPRKBEZEE - &2
HogeE - BH - ABLKERR
%o a8 RRIKARNEEREER
o RHEBA40%K%60% - RIFA &
WE AEEBHEAREARY
40,000,000 (# & B &
44,398,000 L) fE AL E KRR
BN -4 h@EtrA —EHR-Z
TNEMA+TN\BRBz ERRE
RTUHE - BAZERHZ2HE—
STHBEHINARRBHAZS
ZNF=ZA=Z+—HZHEEHR -

RZZEZNFWMA=-+hB  £&
EE—FBUBE=H([EH])ETL
BEEZhEE ((REESRGER
El) Bt rEBEREEERE
FRZEE —RPECEBNHR
Rk ERKIEBR AR ([BHHR
gk B WMok ]) 2 83.33% R
ReRERARES00,0007 (FHSE
M #)555,000/ 7T) © BRIEE RS
ETNE  AEBBERBENER
e g B FIK 75 2 83.33%4E 28
BT 21667%EEBEH—FKRTH
BEBEDERE - B BRI HE
KEEEEFREREBEEMEN
BB THEEEHKRE KT
SENERANA  KREFFTYLS—
= AL A== E Il S
FKH SZ1THE AR 13,000,000
7T (FHE R 414,429,000 7T) ° B
AZER G2 E—THBEHIR
ARaBHA-—ZTEENFRAA+THE
BZAMA -

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the

Group had the following material post balance sheet events:

(a)

On 6 March 2008, the Group entered into an agreement
(the "JV Agreement”) with a company (the “JV Partner”)
which is indirectly wholly-owned by a substantial
shareholder of the Company to form a joint venture (the
“JV") which will be principally engaged in investment,
construction, operation, management, contracting and
consulting on waterworks in the PRC. The JV will be owned
as to 40% by the Group and 60% by the JV Partner.
Pursuant to the JV Agreement, the Group will inject an
aggregate of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$44,398,000) as capital injection and shareholder’s loan.
The JV Agreement was subsequently approved by the
ordinary resolution passed on 18 April 2008. Further details
about the transactions are set out in the Company’s circular
dated 31 March 2008.

On 29 April 2008, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) under which the
Group agreed to buy and the Vendor agreed to sell 83.33%
equity interest in a PRC entity, /& %7 5 7% 2R It 8¢ LK 75 5
fRAR ("BEF B MRIBE BRI "), at cash consideration
of RMB500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$555,000).
Upon completion of the Equity Transfer Agreement, the
Group will own 83.33% equity interest in & T % ¢ 5& Ik
B HK T and the remaining 16.67% equity interests will
be owned by a state-owned enterprise in the PRC. /& #7 £
7R 2k e 2% 27K 7% is principally engaged in provision of water
supply services in certain areas of Qingxin County, Qingyuan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. On 9 May 2008, the
Group entered into another agreement under which the
Group agreed to inject further capital of RMB13,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$14,429,000) to /& %7 5 ¢
o gk 3% B2 7K 7% . Further details about the transactions are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 14 May
2008.
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MBBE

Financial Summary

ATHINZASEBEREMBFEZ X8
MEEABHMBIREEC NBREEZME
WK - WHMBL MEREELM BRI Z —

B -

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is shown below. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

¥iE RESULTS
BEZE=HA=1+—HLEE
For the years ended 31 March
—EENF —ZTRF —TERFE —_ETLHF ZBENE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
FET FHET FETT FETT FH T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
g Revenue 267,369 207,196 263,768 519,944 648,475
R F [Z i F Profit for the year 29,837 35,651 38,619 34,316 24,885
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=+—8H
As at 31 March
—EENF —ETRF —TERF —TZELF ZTBENE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
FET FHET FH&TT FE T FH T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEE Total assets 151,830 113,010 210,206 356,948 773,315
FEN=R= Total liabilities (115,629) (60,953) (75,532)  (196,196)  (335,477)
4R 25 Total equity 36,201 52,057 134,674 160,752 437,838
B 5 Note:

REBR-_ZZRAFR_TEMF=A=+—H
FBEZSAHESVBREFEZEEERE - AE
BEMEDRERF 2 SBEERER  BWOZE
BRZEVRFEAN—EFE -
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The summary of the operating results, assets and liabilities of the Group as
at and for the financial years ended 31 March 2005 and 2004 was prepared
as if the current group structure had been in existence throughout these
financial years.
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